
 

 

Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764693  

e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

 
 

Committee - GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Date & Time - Thursday, 11 November 2021 at 4.00 pm 
 

Venue - Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding 

 
 

Membership of the Governance and Audit Committee: 
 
Councillors: F Biggadike, C J T H Brewis, T A Carter (Chairman), M Hasan, M D Seymour 
and S C Walsh 
 
Quorum 3. 

 
 

 If you would like to attend this meeting as 
a member of the public, please contact 

Democratic Services via email at 
demservices@sholland.gov.uk or via 

telephone on 01775 764693. 

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones  

 
 
 
 
 
Democratic Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:  3 November 2021 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


AGENDA 
PLEASE NOTE TIMINGS 
ARE APPROXIMATE 
 
TIME 
4:00pm 1.  Apologies for absence. 

  
 

4:01pm 2.  Declaration of Interests -  
(Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
the Councillor must declare the interest to the meeting 
and leave the room without participating in any 
discussion or making a statement on the item, except 
where a Councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a 
grant of dispensation).  
 

 

4:02pm 3.  Minutes -  
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting 
held on 29 July 2021 (copy enclosed). 
 

(Pages 5 - 
26) 

4:05pm 4.  Strategic Risk Register -  
To provide an update to the committee on the progress 
of the Council’s identified strategic risks (report of the 
Assistant Director Corporate and Portfolio Holder 
Corporate and Communications enclosed). 
 

(Pages 27 
- 48) 

4:15pm 5.  Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity -  
To examine the progress made between 29 July 2021 to 
1 November 2021 in relation to the completion of the 
Internal Audit Plan 2021/22. (report of the Head of 
Internal Audit enclosed). 
 

(Pages 49 
- 58) 

4:30pm 6.  Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations -  
To provide members with the position of progress made 
by management in implementing agreed Internal Audit 
recommendations as at 31 March 2021 to 1 November 
2021 (report of the Head of Internal Audit enclosed). 
 
The following officers will be in attendance to give verbal 
updates on progress of previous recommendations:  

• Strategic Property Manager - Marc Whelan 

• Environmental Services Manager – Charlotte 
Paine 

• Head of ICT and Digital (PSPS) – Jackie Wright 
 

(Pages 59 
- 68) 

5:00pm 7.  Mid Term Treasury Report 2021/22 -  
To provide an update of the treasury management 
position of the Council as at 30 September 2021 (report 
of the Deputy Chief Executive – Corporate Development 
(S151) enclosed).  
 
 
 

(Pages 69 
- 86) 

Page 2



5:10pm 
 

8.  Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme -  
To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and 
Audit Committee (report of the Assistant Director - 
Governance and Monitoring Officer enclosed). 
 

(Pages 87 
- 90) 

5:15pm 9.  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. 
-  
NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by 

reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of 
urgency. 

 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in the 
Marquee Suite, Springfields Events & Conference Centre, Camelgate, Spalding, 
PE12 6ET, on Thursday, 29 July 2021 at 4.00 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
T A Carter (Chairman) 

J R Astill (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

F Biggadike 
 

C J T H Brewis 
 

S C Walsh 
 

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors M D Seymour    
 
In Attendance:  Councillor P E Coupland and F Haywood (Internal Audit Manager, 
Eastern Internal Audit Services), the Assistant Director Finance, the Head of Finance, 
the Finance Manager Treasury, the Senior Change and Performance Business 
Partner and the Democratic Services Team Leader. 
 
 
 Action By 

1. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

  

 There were no declarations of interest,   

   

2. MINUTES   

  

 Consideration was given to the meeting of the Governance and 
Audit Committee held on 11 March 2021, and the following points 
were raised: 
 
Councillor Brewis requested that his apologies for the meeting be 
noted as they were not included. 
 

• In relation to minute 36, final bullet point, members 
commented that no feedback had been received with regard to 
the recent IT failure. 

o Officers responded that an interim assessment had 
recently taken place, and that the results would be 
shared with committee members. 

• Members asked if there was any further progress in relation to 
minute 39 and the outstanding action around Data Protection. 

o The Internal Audit Manager advised that all Asset 
Registers had now been completed, and that this 
item was now closed. 

• In relation to minute 39, members commented that they had 
not had clarification on the ‘maverick’ spend comment. 

o The Internal Audit Manager advised that an 
explanation had been offered, and that it referred to 
any spend which was non-compliant with contract 
regulations and compliance rules.  In order to 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CG  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



- 2 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

mitigate this risk, in depth training would be 
undertaken with the responsible budget holders. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the minutes of the Governance and Audit Committee 
meeting held on 11 March 2021 be agreed, subject to the addition 
of Councillor Brewis’s apologies.  

CM  

   

3. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit, which examined the progress made between 2 March 2021 
and 20 July 2021 in relation to the completion of the revised 
Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21. 
 
The Governance and Audit Committee received updates on 
progress made against the annual internal audit plan.  The report 
formed part of the overall reporting requirements to assist the 
Council in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the internal 
audit activity. 
 
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards required the Chief 
Audit Executive to report to the Governance and Audit Committee 
the performance of internal audit relative to its agreed plan, 
including any significant risk exposures and control issues.  The 
frequency of reporting at South Holland was to each meeting.   
 
To comply with the above requirements, the report identified: 
 

• Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan; 

• Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year; 

• Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and 

• Performance measures to date 
 
The Committee was advised of details of progress made in 
delivering the agreed audit work, and the outcomes arising from 
the auditor’s work was detailed within the report. 
 
During the period covered by the report, Internal Audit had issued 
two reports, one of those was in draft and was awaiting 
management responses – Asset Management (Draft) 
(Reasonable Assurance); and Remote Access (Reasonable 
Assurance). 
 
The information within the report was considered, and the 
following issues were raised: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



- 3 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

• The Internal Audit Manager presented the findings raised from 
the remote access audit and confirmed that two important 
priority findings had been raised, one relating to policies and 
procedures and one in relation to remote access monitoring.  
Members raised concerns over timeframes in relation to 
completion of the second monitoring recommendation due to a 
deadline of 2022 being given and felt that this was an 
important issue and should be dealt with sooner. 

o The Internal Audit Manager could not comment on 
the project or when this would happen.  However, 
the risk was being clearly articulated and needed to 
be considered for the Strategic Risk Register.   

• Members responded that there were real risks and that the 
matter had to be dealt with more urgently. 

o The Internal Audit Manager agreed on the urgency 
of the issue, which had been added into a Cyber 
Security internal audit, currently planned for Quarter 
4, but which could be brought forward. 

• The Chairman requested that the IT Manager be requested to 
attend the next meeting to discuss the issue. 

 

• As part of the Asset Management Arrangements audit, it was 
stated that a planned maintenance programme be developed 
for relevant assets and that this be subjected to regular 
review, to reduce the risk of health and safety issues and 
asset deterioration – members supported this action. 

 

• The Asset Management Arrangements audit stated that the 
asset register had been updated in accordance with the 31 
March 2020 asset valuation report however, evidence of 
subsequent/ongoing valuations were not provided.  Members 
asked if there was any newer information following the 2020 
report. 

o The Internal Audit Manager advised that a report 
was currently in a draft state, that responses were 
still awaited, and that there would be a further 
update at the next meeting. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the information detailed within the report be noted; and 
 
a) That the IT Manager be requested to attend the next meeting 

to provide the Committee with an update on the Remote 
Access Recommendations.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CM  

   

4. FOLLOW UP REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT  
RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

Page 7



- 4 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which provided members with the position on the progress 
made by management in implementing agreed Internal Audit 
recommendations as at 31 March 2021. 
 
The Internal Audit Manager advised that, since the March 
meeting, a number of actions had been completed, and good 
progress was being made.  With regard to the issue of the 
network cabinet, raised at the last 2 meetings, members were 
advised that this had now been resolved, and that the network 
cabinet was in the final stages of being moved into the old 
cleaners’ cupboard, as suggested   
 
Following consideration of the report, and the information 
provided by the Internal Audit Manager, the following issues were 
raised: 
 

• The Chairman re-iterated the good progress being made with 
the outstanding 2020/21 recommendations, as detailed in 
paragraph 3.7 of the report. 

 

• SH2010 – Procurement and Contract Management.  Members 
raised the issue stated within the notes that officers did not yet 
have access to the Finance System.  Access was to be 
provided over the next few months but members asked if this 
could be resolved more quickly. 

o The Internal Audit Manager confirmed that the 
recommendation itself asked for aggregated spend 
analysis and this was a key control asked for across 
the whole consortium and auditors therefore 
required this to be in place before signing it off.  
Until access was available, this item would remain 
open. 

o The Head of Finance advised that options around 
read only access for procurement colleagues were 
currently being explored.  Another issue that had to 
be resolved was how they, as Breckland staff, could 
gain access to the SHDC system.  Potential 
solutions were being looked into including whether 
the system could be added directly to their laptop or 
be accessed via a SHDC laptop. There was 
currently no timescale however, this was a recent 
enquiry and feedback from officers dealing with the 
issue was expected. 

 

• Members noted that section 3.4 of the covering report was 
missing, and it was presumed that these would have been the 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



- 5 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

figures for 18/19. 
o The Internal Audit Manager commented that this 

was missing however, there were no longer any 
outstanding actions for that time frame. 

 

• With regard to outstanding items, some had been so for a 
number of years.  Were further delays anticipated due to the 
Authority’s potential alliance with neighbouring Councils? 

o The Audit Manager responded that the historic 
Asset Management items were problematic and had 
been outstanding for some time.  However, good 
responses had been provided in the most recent 
update.  Current difficulties would always produce 
delays but if any were urgent, they would be raised 
as significant risks.  Good progress had been made 
but the Committee could always call officers to 
future meetings regarding further delays should this 
be required. 

 

• SH2008 – Markets.  Members asked when the situation 
regarding markets as a whole would improve.  

o It was suggested that the Environmental Services 
Manager be invited to attend the next meeting to 
provide an update on progress. 

 
AGREED: 
 
a) That the contents of the report be noted; and 
 
b) That the Environmental Services Manager be invited to the 

next meeting of the Committee to provide a progress update 
on the situation around markets.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CM  

   

5. ANNUAL REPORT AND OPINION 2020/21   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which provided an Annual Report and Opinion for 2020/21, 
drawing upon the outcomes of Internal Audit work performed over 
the course of the year, and concluded on the Effectiveness of 
Internal Audit. 
 
In line with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, which 
came into force from 1 April 2013, an annual opinion should be 
generated which concluded on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk 
management and control: 
 

• A summary of the work which supported the opinion should be 

 

Page 9



- 6 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

submitted; 

• Reliance placed on other assurance providers should be 
recognised; 

• Any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reason for 
qualification must be provided; 

• There should be disclosure of any impairments or restriction to 
the scope of the opinion; 

• There should be a comparison of actual audit work undertaken 
with planned work; 

• The performance of internal audit against its performance 
measures and targets should be summarised; and 

• Any other issues considered relevant to the Annual 
Governance Statement should be recorded. 

 
The report also contained conclusions on the Review of the 
Effectiveness of Internal Audit, which included: 
 

• The degree of conformance with the PSIAS and the results of 
any quality assurance and improvement programme; 

• The outcomes of the performance indicators; and 

• The degree of compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the 
Role of the Head of Internal Audit. 

 
The Head of Internal Audit raised the following main points: 
 

• The opinion itself was detailed at section 2.2 of the report – 
the overall opinion in relation to the framework of governance, 
risk management and control at South Holland District Council 
was Reasonable – this conclusion was reached by considering 
a number of points which were detailed within the report. 

• Section 3.4 of the report outlined issues for inclusion within the 
Annual Governance Statement.  Management would need to 
advise on how these issues would be taken forward. 

• The grading was positive and the framework overall was 
considered stable.  It was important to note that the Covid-19 
pandemic had been a considerable challenge over the past 
year, and the Council’s core services had not been 
significantly impacted. 

 
Consideration was given to the report, and the following points 
were raised: 
 

• Members commented that rather than waiting for information 
on the results of audits as part of the Internal Audit report to 
the Committee, that members be provided with this 
information as soon as it was available.  

 

Page 10



- 7 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

• With regard to External Assessment (section 5.1.2 of the 
report), it stated that in relation to the Attribute standards it 
was recognised that to achieve full conformance, an external 
assessment was needed.  This was required to be completed 
every five years, with the first review having been completed in 
January 2017.  Was this scheduled for next year? 

o The Internal Audit Manager confirmed that this was 
being considered.  A procurement exercise was to 
be undertaken in the autumn following which the 
new contract would require some time to establish 
itself.  The external assessment would therefore 
take place later in 2022. 

 

• Members commented that at section 5.2.3 of the report, it 
stated that ‘performance had not been in line within the 
boundaries of our agreed targets in some areas during 
2020/21……’ but that results in the table stated performance 
as ‘Adequate’.  This information seemed contradictory 

o The Internal Audit Manager responded by advising 
that the contract was measured over a number of 
indicators, and that 3 and 4 had not been met.  With 
regard to quality, the Governance and Audit 
Committee Chairman had been asked for feedback 
and had provided this, and there were a number of 
improvement actions to take forward.  Performance 
was adequate overall but not Excellent, which was 
where it should be in the future.  The main points 
where boundaries had not been met were around 
timeliness. 

 
AGREED: 
 
a) That the contents of the Annual Report and Opinion of the 

Head of Internal Audit be received and approved; 
 
b) That it be noted that a Reasonable audit opinion had been 

given in relation to governance, risk management and control 
for the year ended 31 March 2021; 

 
c) That it be noted that the opinions expressed together with 

significant matters arising from internal audit work and 
contained within the report should be given due consideration, 
when developing and reviewing the Council’s Annual 
Governance Statement for 2020/21; and 

 
d) That the conclusions of the Review of the Effectiveness of 

Internal Audit be noted.  
   

Page 11



- 8 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

6. ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 2020/21   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Strategy and Resources (S151) which considered the Annual 
Treasury Management Review 2020/21 prior to it being submitted 
to Council for approval. 
 
The Council was required by regulations issued under the Local 
Government Act 2003 to produce an annual treasury 
management review of activities and the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators for 2020/21.  The report met the requirements 
of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 
(the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities (the Prudential Code). 
 
During 2020/21, the following reports had been submitted:  
 

• An annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 26 
February 2020 ); 

• A mid year (minimum) treasury update report (Council 20 
January 2021); 

• An annual review following the end of the year, describing the 
activity compared to the strategy (the report under 
consideration) 

 
The regulatory environment placed responsibility on members for 
the review and scrutiny of treasury management policy and 
activities. The report was therefore important in that respect, as it 
provided details of the outturn position for treasury activities and 
highlighted compliance with the Council’s policies previously 
approved by members. 
 
The Council confirmed that it had complied with the requirement 
under the Code to give prior scrutiny to all of the above treasury 
management reports by the Governance and Audit Committee.  
Member training on treasury management was last provided on 
14 November 2019, in order to support the members’ scrutiny 
role. 
 
The Treasury Management function was administered by Public 
Sector Partnership Services Ltd, on behalf of the Council. 
 
The Council was currently in the process of producing its financial 
statements for the 2020/21 financial year, and these would be 
subject to external audit.  The figures in the report were therefore 
subject to change, and any such changes would be reflected in 
the report submitted to Council. 
 

 

Page 12



- 9 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

The report summarised the following: 
 

• Capital activity during the year; 

• Impact of this activity on the Council’s underlying 
indebtedness (the Capital Financing Requirement); 

• The actual prudential and treasury indicators; 

• Overall treasury position identifying how the Council had 
borrowed in relation to its indebtedness, and the impact on 
investment balances; 

• Summary of interest rate movements in the year; 

• Borrowing and investment outturn positions; 

• Economy and interest rates. 
 
Consideration was given to the report, and the following points 
were raised: 
 

• With regard to monies borrowed by the Authority in 2012 to 
retain its housing stock some years ago, members 
commented that pressure should be put on the Government 
through the LGA to take forward the matter of the PWLB 
interest rate paid in relation to the current low interest rates, 
particularly at a time when funds were already stretched. 

o Officers confirmed that the Authority did have this 
borrowing on its books, and if interest rates changed 
and rose above the 3.48%, it would have the 
opportunity to repay the money early, and potentially 
receive a discount on the amount borrowed.  However, 
there was currently no economic benefit to repaying the 
debt early – the Assistant Director Finance agreed to 
continue to monitor.  

 
AGREED: 
 
That the report be noted.           

   

7. STRATEGIC AND ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLANS 2021/22   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which provided an overview of the stages followed prior to 
the formulation of the Strategic Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22 to 
2024/25 and the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22. 
 
The Internal Audit Plan provided the basis for the Annual Audit 
Opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of South 
Holland District Council’s framework of governance, risk 
management and control. 
 
The Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 was 

 

Page 13



- 10 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

attached as an appendix to the report. 
 
Members considered the report and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

• Members asked for clarification on choices within the 
programming of review.  Areas raised were regarding the 
Contact Centre, Strategic Housing, and Planning, all of which 
had been deferred. 

o The Internal Audit Manager advised that this was a 
3 year plan, and was subject to change.  The 
Planning review was due for 2024/25 – no 
significant risks had been raised but the officer 
believed this should be brought forward.  With 
regard to the Contact Centre and Strategic Housing, 
members were advised that Housing was due for 
review next year, but that there were currently no 
real concerns with regard to Strategic Housing and 
the Contact Centre.  However, should issues arise, 
the programme would be evaluated again in 
January 2022.  The Internal Audit Manager also 
advised that as part of the discussion of this report 
at a number of authorities, it was felt that providing 
more context within the Strategic Plan would be 
helpful to understand why some reviews were 
included and others were not. 

 

• Members commented that at Appendix 4, under the notes for 
Operational Fleet Review, the impression was given that no 
monitoring had previously taken place. 

o The Internal Audit Manager advised that the review 
had been at a request from management as it was 
an area that had not been reviewed before and had 
therefore been identified as a risk. 

 

• With regard to ICT Audits, detailed within the Strategic Audit 
Plan at Appendix 3, members requested that if any significant 
issues arose in this area in the future, that they also be raised 
with the Committee as soon as possible. 

 

• Members asked whether, with the pending alliance between 
SHDC, Boston Borough Council and East Lindsey District 
Council, there were any areas of audit that needed to be 
brought forward in order that they were in place for the 
authority and its future partners. 

o The Internal Audit Manager advised they had not 
been requested to undertake any due diligence work 
at this stage, and that the plan had been drawn 

Page 14



- 11 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

together before any partnership decisions had been 
made.  However, the Internal Audit function needed 
to be responsive to the needs of the council – the 
risk register would continue to be reviewed, and 
conversations would take place with senior 
management, and if any areas of concern were 
highlighted for review, they would be brought to the 
Committee for consideration and addition to the 
plan. 

 

• Members commented that the audit of the Office 365 project 
had been deferred again. 

o The Internal Audit Manager confirmed that this had 
been deferred a number of times, as it was still not 
in a position for auditors to consider.  Auditors were 
continuing to liaise with the IT project team to gauge 
the situation. It was confirmed that there was 
nothing within the risk register currently that raised 
concerns. 

 

• Members requested that should there be any changes to the 
Plan, that the Governance and Audit Committee be advised. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the following be noted and approved: 
 
a) The Internal Audit Charter 
b) The Internal Audit Strategy for 2021/22; 
c) The Strategic Internal Audit Plans 2021/22 to 2024/25; and 
d) The Annual Internal Audit Plan 2021/22  

   

8. Q4 STRATEGIC RISK REPORT   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
for Growth, which provided an update to the Committee on the 
progress of the Council’s identified strategic risks. 
 
The Senior Change, Innovation and Performance Business 
Partner provided the Committee with the following updates: 
 

• The risk of the Council failing to meet regulatory compliances 
had reduced in likelihood.  The risk had been raised in Q3 due 
to the upcoming election and the challenges faced as a result 
of Covid, and reduced resources.  It was noted that the 
election had been delivered successfully and in a Covid-safe 
manner. 

• In the build-up and subsequent separation from Breckland 

 

Page 15



- 12 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

Council, a key function of external policy and horizon-scanning 
work had moved across to Breckland (this function had been 
managed under the previous role of Senior Policy Advisor 
within the Shared Management Team).  These changes to the 
structure increased the likelihood of the organisation 
breaching regulatory compliance.  This area of work would 
now be undertaken by the Senior Change, Innovation and 
Performance Business Partner, and key intelligence was 
circulated to all senior staff for awareness, thus reducing this 
risk. 

• There had been an increased risk around the breakdown of 
internal communications. It was clarified that this was not 
regarding a breakdown of internal communications, rather that 
there was an increased need for the Authority’s internal 
communications plans to be frequent, useful and informative 
for staff.  The need for this was crucial due to current key 
events such as the end of the strategic partnership with 
Breckland Council, changes with regard to returning to the 
office to work and the easing of lockdown, and information on 
new strategic partnerships.  

 
AGREED: 
 
That the content of the report be noted.  

   

9. Q1 STRATEGIC RISK REPORT   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
for Growth, which provided an update to the Committee on the 
progress of the Council’s identified strategic risks. 
 
The Senior Change, Innovation and Performance Business 
Partner provided the Committee with the following updates: 
 

• Since the Q4 iteration of the register, there had been an 
increase in risk levels around the delivery of the housing 
service and waste collections.  

 
o Housing Service – The Housing Team were facing 

significant resource challenges, and whilst these staff 
shortages were being seen, the risk level had been raised 
to reflect this. 

o Delays as a result of resource challenges – The Housing 
team had seen some delays with full housing assessments 
being booked.  However, additional appointments were 
being created utilising temporary staffing resources.  This 
was being balanced against demand created through 
emergency presentations.  The Housing Team Leader was 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



- 13 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

moving resources to respond to demand and, where 
possible, delayed appointments would be brought forward. 

o Additional mitigations – Three temporary Housing Options 
Advisors had been appointed to ensure that the team had 
sufficient capacity to remain operational.  Other resources 
from within the Housing Department were being utilised to 
provide additional support in areas such as the 
management and booking of temporary accommodation, 
assistance with visiting, and collection of information from 
people in temporary accommodation. 

o Project delivery timeframes for MyOptions – The scheduled 
go-live date for MyOptions online was still 4 October 2021, 
work was underway to achieve the transition, and there 
were currently no anticipated delays.  It was clarified that 
this was the homeless self-triage tool element, and that the 
housing register element was already live and operational.  
As an interim measure to allow customers to self-refer, the 
Jigsaw Portal had been opened and the webpages and 
Customer Contact updated.  Telephone messages and the 
Council’s webpages had all been updated to enable 
customers to self-help where possible. 

o Trends within the Housing service arising from exit 
interviews or additional intelligence – A presentation would 
be given to the HR People Board to ensure oversight from 
the Executive Management Team and PSPS colleagues.  
A recent recruitment campaign by a neighbouring authority 
had had a material impact through the number of 
vacancies on offer.  Actions were being followed up to 
ensure that the Council was doing all it could to retain staff, 
and this information would be brought forward to the next 
meeting, or shared sooner if possible. 

 

• Waste Collections 
o A similar trend was being seen in this area, with a shortage 

in the number of HGV drivers available through agencies.  
Presently, there were no major service delivery issues to 
highlight however, the HGV driver shortage that the service 
was facing reflected the national situation seen across 
several other authorities and private businesses.  
Recruitment agencies were experiencing skills shortages, 
and it was a difficult market for specific candidate 
attraction.  Due to the competitive nature of the market, 
candidate retention was also extremely difficult. 

o With regard to work being undertaken by the 
Environmental Services team around working with and 
learning from partners, members were advised that 
employment terms were being reviewed to ensure that they 
were competitive within the industry, utilising learning from 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CG  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



- 14 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

other partners, and drawing from their experience where 
possible. 

 

• A further key change was the risk of Council/service delivery 
as a result of new strategic partnership arrangements.  
Members were advised that there had been no negative 
impacts to service delivery directly identified or seen in the 
period, and that the risk review had been a proactive one as 
there would naturally be a period of change for the Authority 
which would need appropriate focus and management to 
ensure a smooth transition.  For these reasons, the risk profile 
associated with changes to the Council’s strategic partnership 
status, and the need for these changes to be successfully 
embedded, had been increased. 

 

• Cyber Security – whilst there had been no significant change 
within the quarter, members were provided with clarification 
around the wording within the report.  The risk quoted that the 
email security software (MimeCast) blocked 20-30% of spam 
which seemed a low figure.  However, clarification had been 
received that in fact the system actually blocked nearly all 
spam, and that the figure of 20-30% was actually the 
percentage of spam emails coming into the Council.  The IT 
Manager was comfortable that the risk score was adequate as 
there were a number of mitigations in place such as an 
internal awareness programme currently in development with 
the first iteration of communications being released in early 
August, and the training of the Management Team on cyber 
security and best practice, with this information to be 
cascaded further. 

 
Following consideration of the report, and the information 
provided by the officer, the following issues were raised: 
 

• Members commented that, following the cyber incident some 
months ago, it was strange that the impact and likelihood 
scores had not changed from Q4 to Q1.  In addition, following 
the situation in November where access to email had been 
lost, there was insufficient detail explaining what had 
happened.  In the same way, there needed to be further 
expansion on the issue of data and application storage. 

o Officers advised that they would obtain information 
on the circumstances around the loss of email in 
November, and would circulate this information to 
members.  In addition, the IT Manager would be 
requested to attend the next meeting of the 
Committee to provide a more expansive explanation 
to the issues raised. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CG  

Page 18



- 15 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

• Members suggested that a report on the various issues be 
prepared in the first instance, and that this be circulated to 
Committee members outside of the meeting.  They would then 
decide if it was still necessary for the IT Manager to attend the 
next meeting. 

 

• Members asked that further information be provided around 
housing delays, and the true impact that this was having on 
members of the public affected.  It was requested that this 
information be circulated to members of the Committee. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the content of the report be noted.  

   

10. COUNTER-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION POLICY   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which requested that members review and comment on the 
suggested enhancements to the Counter Fraud and Corruption 
Policy. 
 
The Counter Fraud and Corruption policy was required to be 
reviewed and approved by the Governance and Audit Committee 
every three years.  The policy was last approved by the 
Committee in December 2017 and an update was therefore due.  
This had been delayed to allow for an assessment of the current 
arrangements to be undertaken in comparison with the latest 
strategy from CIFAS (Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally). 
 
A first draft of the updated policy was provided to the Committee 
for review prior to approval.  It was recommended that the policy, 
once reviewed by the Committee, be endorsed for approval by 
management, and stakeholders be consulted on changes, before 
it was presented to the Committee for approval in September 
2021. 
 
The Internal Audit Manager highlighted the areas of change within 
the Policy: 
 

• Economic Crime had been added to the list within the 
Introduction of the various types of fraud risks; 

• References to CPBS had been replaced with PSPS;  

• Section 2 – Within the table giving definitions of the types of 
Fraud, Corruption and Bribery, the list had been expanded to 
include examples of fraud in each of these areas; 

• Section 3 – The Audit Approach.  Two new pillars had been 
included here: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CM  

Page 19



- 16 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

o Govern (Tone at the top) – Proposal that the 
Governance and Audit Committee have a greater 
involvement in reviewing and approving policies for 
Counter Fraud and Corruption; that the Committee 
receive annually the fighting fraud and corruption locally 
strategy checklist and the risk assessment associated 
with this; and that the relevant portfolio holder be made 
aware of fraud risks and mitigations.. 

o Protect (Protecting the Council and its Residents) – The 
aim of this was that fraud and corruption cases be 
publicised and endorsed by the Council’s 
communications team to highlight awareness in the 
local community; and that cyber crime controls be 
regularly reviewed to ensure they remained adequate to 
new and increasingly sophisticated techniques from 
fraudsters.  

• Contacts for Whistleblowing – this section needed updating.  
 
Members considered the document, and the following points were 
raised: 
 

• Members questioned whether the continuation of home 
working was a risk to the fraud policy or not. 

o The Internal Audit Manager did not believe that there 
was a greater risk from home working.  She also 
commented that there needed to be more work and 
assurance undertaken with regard to cyber security.  

 
AGREED: 
 
That the suggested enhancements to the Counter Fraud and 
Corruption Policy be noted.  

   

11. 20/21 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   

  

 The Head of Finance provided the Committee with the following 
verbal update on the 20/21 Financial Statements. 
 
The Accounts and Audit Amendments Regulations 2021 required 
authorities to publish financial statements for public inspection 30 
days from 1 August 2021.  As part of this wider assurance, it was 
good practice for the Governance and Audit Committee to review 
those draft statements prior to publication to provide the 
opportunity to review the year’s statements.  This was scheduled 
for this meeting however, due to a delay in completing the 
financial statements by PSPS, both the S151 Officer and the 
Deputy S151 Officer had not had sufficient time to review the draft 
statements ahead of the deadline for submission of the 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



- 17 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

documents to the meeting. 
 
A conversation had taken place between the Deputy S151 Officer 
and the Committee Chairman to provide an opportunity at a later 
date to review the statements and PSPS would provide support 
for whenever this was arranged. 
 
Members were advised that the accounts were very nearly 
complete, an initial review had been undertaken by the Deputy 
S51 Officer earlier in the day, and amendments resulting from this 
review were being made.  A final check would be undertaken the 
next day and once the Deputy S151 Officer was satisfied with the 
content, and provided the S151 Officer with her assurance, the 
accounts would be published by the deadline tomorrow. 
 
Members were advised that there were numerous reasons for the 
delay – Impact of the Covid pandemic and subsequent grant 
support, implementation of a new Finance system and loss of key 
staff.  The Head of Finance accepted full responsibility for the 
resulting delay, and he assured the Committee that proactive 
steps had been taken to ensure that the same situation did not 
take place next year which included the recent appointment of 
additional full-time members of staff to provide greater resilience.  
The new Finance system would also assist in improving the 
process from next year. 
 
The following issues were raised: 
 

• Members understood that the Authority had lent a substantial 
amount of money to Lancashire County Council – was this 
correct? 

o The Treasury and Investment Manager responded 
that did not have these details, but would provide a 
response directly to members.  He did however 
confirm that before any loan was made, the credit 
ratings and financial standings of any institution 
being lent to were thoroughly checked and with all 
local authorities, they were very secure and if for 
any reason they had financial difficulties, central 
government would honour the debt.  

 

• The Chairman commented that once the accounts were 
published, the Deputy S151 Officer would send an email link 
and a printed copy to all Committee members, and a special 
session would be held in September review and scrutinise 
them. 

 
AGREED: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CM  

Page 21



- 18 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

 
That the update be noted, and a special session be held in 
September to consider the published financial statements.  

   

12. 2019-20 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER   

  

 Consideration was given to the 2019-20 Annual Audit Letter, 
produced by EY. 
 
EY had advised that they were currently only attending hybrid 
meetings and as this was not possible at this meeting, the Audit 
Letter was presented by the Assistant Director Finance. 
 
Members were reminded that in March 2021, the 2019/20 
Statement of Accounts were audited and signed off, and this 
document was a summary of the key items from that audit, written 
in a more public facing way for the Council’s website. 
 
There were no new messages within it, and the key matters were 
all reported to the Committee via the Audit Results Report.  It 
formally set out the dates that EY issued within the audit opinion 
and certificate, and thereby closed the 2019/20 audit year. 
 
Members considered the information, and the following issues 
were raised: 
 

• Members commented that there had been a large increase in 
fees from 2018/19 to 2019/20, and the fees for 2020/21 were 
not yet known.  Why had the fee increase been so large? 

o Officers responded that there was an ongoing dialogue 
between the Authority and EY. 2019/20 was an 
exceptional year with work around Covid and additional 
testing requirements, and a breakdown of this 
additional testing had been received.  The Authority had 
agreed on areas of work around Covid-compliance, with 
other areas of work still under discussion. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the 2019-20 Annual Audit Letter be noted.  

 

   

13. 2020/21 EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN   

  

 Consideration was given to the 2020/21 External Audit Plan, 
produced by EY.   
 
The Assistant Director Finance introduced the report and 
confirmed that the Plan set out the intended approach by EY for 

 

Page 22



- 19 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

the 20/21 audit of the Statement of Accounts. 
 
In a year of such change and turbulence, there were some key 
messages which would provide assurance to the Committee 
about consistency in EY’s approach to the prior year. 
 

• Materiality – The same basis (gross expenditure) had been 
used as in the prior year, so there was a consistent level at 
which EY could both identify material errors and report any 
audit differences to the Committee at the Conclusion of the 
audit.  It was currently based on the expected Gross 
Expenditure (last set of accounts), but would now be updated 
for the draft financial statements provided for audit. 

 

• Audit Risks – Members could take great comfort from the 
consistency in the risks from the previous years, as illustrated 
by the yellow highlights within the report.  This reflected a 
normal audit year.  There were a number of new risks, 
highlighted red, which reflected the impact of Covid 19 on 
financial reporting and hence auditing, in respect of: 

a) Government Grant received; 
b) Bad Debit provision – an increase in Debtor Balances 

was expected; 
c) NNDR appeals provision – a higher level of appeals, 

and hence provision was expected; 
d) Collection Fund accounting – in respect of Council Tax 

collection rates and impact of three year smoothing 
impact within Government proposals 

• There was also one new risk for the introduction of the new 
payroll system, given the material nature of the transactions 
which passed through it. 

• Section 2 gave further details against each of these risks. 
 

• VFM – The NAO had that year updated the Code 
requirements.  The impact was three-fold: 

a) Risk Assessment – the criteria of what was a significant 
risk had been amended; 

b) A positive conclusion (i.e. arrangements were 
adequate) was no longer provided with the Audit 
Report.  EY would only report by exception if 
arrangements were not adequate. 

c) A commentary in a new Annual Auditors Report (which 
replaced the Annual Audit Letter) had to be provided, 
on EY’s view of the Council’s arrangements against the 
criteria, and how they arrived at their conclusion 
(exceptions or no exceptions). 

• A Risk Assessment had not yet been completed, and would be 
reported at a future Committee. 

Page 23



- 20 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

 

• Audit Fees – EY had reported on the same premise as in 
2019/20 what they believe was the fair fee to complete the 
audit of South Holland’s size and complexity.  The Scale fee 
was set formally by PSAA and then the additional level of fee 
that EY believe was necessary to perform a quality compliant 
audit to the Code requirements.  This additional element was 
with PSAA for determination in respect of both 2019/20 and 
2020/21. 

 
Members considered the Audit Plan, and the following issues 
were raised: 
 

• Members asked whether there was a ‘random’ element to the 
scoping of the group audit – auditing some areas 
unexpectedly would increase robustness across the Authority. 

o The Assistant Director Finance advised that she 
would obtain a response to this question from EY. 

 

• Members commented that they strongly supported the new 
inherent risks detailed within the Overview of the 2020/21 
audit strategy. 

 

• It was important for the Committee to confirm that it had a full 
understanding of agreement to materiality and reporting levels. 

 

• With regard to Fees detailed within the report, members 
understood that it was difficult to know ahead of time what 
work was required, but the fees had jumped greatly.  The 
potential for each year’s fees was left too open. 

o The Assistant Director Finance advised that she 
took on board these comments however, the 
Authority was bound by the National Procurement 
Exercise which was undertaken and agreed 4 years 
ago for appointment of external auditors.  She was 
mindful that this was an ongoing concern of the 
Committee and would take this forward. 

 
AGREED: 
 
a) That the 2020/21 External Audit Plan be noted; and  
 
b) The Committee confirmed its understanding of agreement to 

the materiality and reporting levels.  
   

14. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME  

 

  

Page 24



- 21 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
29 July 2021 

 

 

 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director 
Governance (Monitoring Officer), which set out the Work 
Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee. 
 
AGREED: 
 
a) That the report and content of the Work Programme be noted; 

and 
 
b) That should an additional meeting be required to consider any 

of the information requested earlier in the meeting, that this be 
arranged.  

 

   

15. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT.  

 

  

 There were none.   

   

 
 
 
(The meeting ended at 5.26 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of:  Assistant Director Corporate & Portfolio Holder Corporate & 

Communications 
 
To: Governance and Audit Committee, November 11th 2021 
 
Author: Corey Gooch, Senior Change, Improvement and Performance 

Business Partner 
 
Subject:  Strategic Risk Register  
 
Purpose: To provide an update to the committee on the progress of the 

Council’s identified strategic risks 
 

Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That the panel gives consideration to both the covering report and Appendix A, 

which details the latest assessment of the council’s strategic risks  
 

 
1.0   BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This covering report and detailed Appendix A seeks to present to Governance and 

Audit Committee an overview of the key risks that the council is exposed to, the action 
taking place to mitigate those risks, and an up to date assessment of their likelihood 
and impact.  
 

1.2 By their very nature, strategic risks are those that have been identified as having the 
potential to cause organizational wide impact and will often cover a number of key 
services and departments. Strategic risks are captured within the council’s risk 
management system, which is available to the council’s management team and is 
reviewed on a regular basis. 

 
1.3 The report and associated identifies that there are currently 24 recorded strategic risks 

that the authority is monitoring. These 24 risks are captured, described and scored in 
a Strategic Risk Register. This register is included in Appendix A for consideration by 
the Governance and Audit committee.     

 
1.4 In terms of methodology, the Council’s risk scoring mechanism is based on a 5x5 

matrix and is comparable with best practice in other similar organizations. The 
risk matrix provides a comprehensive assessment and understanding of risk 
likelihood and impact. The matrix results in a numerical score which combines the 
impact of the risk occurring with the likelihood of it happening. The rating for 
individual risks ranges from highest (red) to lowest (green) with categories in between, 
depending on their rating, details of likelihood and impact scoring criteria are based on 
the council’s risk management policy and can be found below 

 
1.5 The spread of risk across the 24 recorded in the council’s latest Strategic Risk 

Register, following mitigation by services and the council’s management team, is 
as follows;  

 
 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 4.



Risk level Number of strategic risks by score 
(post-mitigation) 

High level (Red) 3 

Medium (Amber) 18 

Low (Green and Yellow) 3 

  
1.6 Overall, the register contained within Appendix 1 demonstrates that strategic risks are 

being proactively managed by the authority, with a series of mitigations in place to 
reduce and mitigate impact and likelihood across a number of key areas. 
 

1.7 Within the strategic risk register included in Appendix A, each risk is ascribed a short 
narrative which seeks to cover the following 

 

• The risk title 

• A description of what the risk council entail 

• The approach to mitigation  

• Latest update to the risk 
 
1.8 The risk register is presented for consideration by the Committee. Officers will be 

available at the meeting of the Committee to answer questions on the content of the 
register. 
  

1.9 The strategic risk register in Appendix A will include details and rationale for any changes 
to risks since the previous quarter, an overview of these changes can be found below. 

 

Title Change since last quarter 

Housing Team Resources/Provision  

Cyber Incident  

Parkwood Leisure Provision  

Regulatory Compliance  

Local Economy  

Council Financial Positions  

Short term impact on the council of a challenging transition in the 
UK/EU relationship 

 

Vulnerability risk  

Technology infrastructure failure  

Changes in legislation and policy in response to Covid19 
 

Changes to the strategic shared partnership  

Performance of PSPS contract  

Waste Collections  

Reductions in council performance 
 

Retention of staff  

External Reputation 
  

Page 28



Title Change since last quarter 

Capacity to deal with more than one significant incident  

Outsourcing/Service provider failure  

Impact of COVID-19 upon the council  

COVID-19 Outbreak response  

Safeguarding  

Decision Making  

Staff Presentation (availability/turning up for work)  

Impact of extensive home working  

Internal communications breakdown  

External communications breakdown  

Impact of local government re-organisation  

 
 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 Option 1 - That the contents of the covering report and the strategic risk register, as 

captured within Appendix A, are noted (recommended) 
 

2.2 Option 2 – Do Nothing 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To allow the Governance and Audit committee to review the strategic risks that the 

authority is exposed to, and to evaluate the council’s current plan of action in respect 
of mitigation of each.   

 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 To ensure that the identified Strategic Risks are properly monitored and reviewed in 

accordance with the Corporate Risk Policy.  
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1       Constitution & Legal 
 
5.1.1    This report and associated appendix has been prepared within the terms of reference 

of the Governance and Audit Committee.  
 

5.2       Corporate Priorities 

5.2.1   The strategic risk register in Appendix 1 presents an assessment of risks that have 

the potential to impact upon and shape the delivery of the council’s corporate 

priorities. 

5.3 Financial 

Page 29



5.3.1    There are no specific financial implications associated with the report 

recommendation. However, the strategic risk register in Appendix 1 presents an 

assessment of risks that have the potential to impact upon the council’s financial 

circumstances.  

 

5.4 Reputation 

 

5.4.1    There are no specific reputation implications associated with the report 

recommendation. However, the strategic risk register in Appendix 1 presents an 

assessment of risks that may create reputational risks for the council if not managed 

and mitigated appropriately. 

 

5.5  Risk Management 

  5.5.1    The strategic risk register contained within Appendix 1 is one of the council’s key 

tools for supporting the authority in managing key strategic risks.  

5.6  Staffing 

  5.6.1    The report contains information relating to staffing issues. 

6.0       WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED  

6.1       All wards 

7.0       ACRONYMS  

• PMP – Performance Monitoring Panel 

• LA – Local Authority 

• PSPS – Public Sector Partnerships Services 

• SLA’s- Service level agreements 

• GDPR- General Data Protection Regulations 

• CIP- Change, Innovation & Performance 

Background papers:- 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:  Corey Gooch – Senior Change, Improvement & 

Performance Business Partner 
 

Telephone Number: 07766510458 
Email: corey.gooch@sholland.gov.uk 

 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting 
 
Name and Post:  Corey Gooch – Senior Change, Improvement & 

Performance Business Partner 
 
Key Decision:  No 

 

Page 30



Exempt Decision: No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
 
Appendix A 
 

Strategic Risk Register 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



SHDC Strategic Risk Report 
 
 

 

Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current 
Risk Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

Housing Team 
Resources and 
Support 

The council's ability 
to meet the demands 
for support with 
homelessness and 
housing advice, 
supporting residents 
in preventing 
homelessness before 
it occurs, and when it 
does occur 
supporting residents 
in securing 

Resources in the Housing 
Options Team have been 
refocussed to concentrate 
on specific aspects of the 
Homelessness service- 
General Advice, 
Prevention, Relief and 
support for the private 
sector. The post of 
Housing First Responder 
has been created to add 
additional support and 
capacity to the service. 
This capacity will increase 
the number of instances 
where homelessness can 
be prevented. Additional 
support is in place for 
rough sleepers and those 
at risk of rough sleeping 
through the 
Change4Lincs project. 
The Northgate project 
team are currently 
progressing self-triage 
tools through My Options 
which will add additional 
capacity to the service 
through customer self-
service. 

20 

 

4 5 

 

Since March 2020 there has been an on-
going moratorium providing protection for 
renters. This has essentially placed a ban 
on people being made homeless from 
privately rented accommodation; this has 
most recently been extended to the 
31/03/2021. Whilst further protection may 
be granted, it is unlikely this will continue 
beyond a short extension. The furlough 
scheme is also due to end on the 
31/03/2021. Given that loss of private 
sector accommodation ordinarily accounts 
for 30% of cases the council owes a 
homeless duty towards it is highly likely the 
council will see a surge in people requiring 
advice, assistance and interim 
accommodation. The council has some 
interim resources in the form of Housing 
First Responders until the 31/03/2021, 
which is contributing to reducing waiting 
times. However, it is likely the increase in 
demand for interim accommodation will 
have a financial impact on the council. The 
surge in demand can be mitigated at the 
current risk level if interim resources 
continue to be made available. 

Jason King 

P
age 33



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current 
Risk Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

Changes to the 
councils strategic 
partnership 
arrangements 

Enabling and 
embedding changes 
to the organisation, 
linked to the new 
strategic partnership. 

 Proactive management 
of risks and issues are 
undertaken at the 
programme management 
board. 

16 

 

4 4 

 
The new partnership is in place and in 
implementation phase. Reports on 
progress and next steps are programmed 
and member briefings are underway.  An 
elevated level of risk may be expected due 
to the extent of the change underway but 
mitigations are in place to manage these 
risks. 

Rob Barlow 

Nathan Elvery 

Cyber Incident 

The risk of the 
council's ICT 
infrastructure being 
severally impact as 
the result of a cyber 
incident, both in 
terms of downtime of 
systems and loss of 
data/information. The 
threat landscape 
across the UK is 
continuously 
increasing and 
appears on the 
national risk 
assessment. The 
Council need to 
constantly adapt in 
its security mitigation 
and training to 
ensure they are both 
prepared from a 
technical and from a 
people aspect 

There are a range of 
measures in place 
including firewalls, 
Mimecast and antivirus in 
order to protect the 
council's ICT systems. 
The ICT team play an 
active part in the East 
Midlands WARP which 
allow us to have early 
sight of issues being 
experienced across 
neighbouring Authorities 
and Agencies. ICT is also 
a member of the CISP 
formed by the National 
Cyber Security Centre, 
this allows us early 
awareness from the 
central agency 
responsible for cyber 
threats across the UK as 
well as allowing them to 
monitor our environment 
to a degree. These 
mitigations afford ICT 
awareness of emerging 

15 

 

5 3 

 

The national trend for Cyber Security 
threats across Public Sector has almost 
doubled in the past 12 months and 
therefore the likelihood of this risk has been 
increased slightly.  ICT continue to operate 
a Defence In Depth method of protection 
and the implementation of a Security 
Information & Events Management system 
across the ICT estate has improved our 
visibility and response to potential threats.  
Mimecast continues to block around 20-
30% of malicious, spam or inappropriate 
email from reaching our staff and members 
on a monthly basis. 

Jackie Wright 

P
age 34



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current 
Risk Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

threats. 

Parkwood Leisure 
Provision 

The council's ability 
to provide leisure 
services through its 
contract with 
Parkwood Leisure, 
including any 
financial risk 
exposure and service 
delivery issues as a 
result of the Covid-19 
pandemic 

Working closely with 
leisure operator to ensure 
that their projected targets 
are being met. Utilising 
the advice of the council's 
Contracts and 
Procurement team, 
alongside external 
advisors, ensuring that we 
are protecting the 
contract. 

12 

 

4 3 

 

We are in active dialogue with our Leisure 
contractor that has, to date, been 
supported through both SHDC and 
Government funding. Further decisions 
may be required depending upon the 
outcome of existing negotiations. 

Emily Holmes 

Phil Perry 

Local Economy 

The risk of the 
economy of South 
Holland as a whole 
experiencing a 
downturn, resulting in 
both employment 
and business 
closures, and having 
a consequential 
impact on a range of 
resident wellbeing. 

The council regularly 
monitors the impact of the 
local economy through 
regular engagement with 
businesses and partners. 
Engagement with 
business and the council 
remains high. A large 
proportion of the economy 
of South Holland is 
structured around the 
agriculture, food 
production and 
distribution, and 
horticultural sector which 
continues to be largely 
resilient to the effects of 
the pandemic on the 
wider economy from a 
demand-side perspective, 
but continues to grapple 
with supply-side 
constraints relating to 

12 

 

4 3 

 

Reviewed, but retained at current risk score 
for the current period. The economy as a 
whole is exhibiting signs of emerging from 
the pandemic in a resilient position, given 
the demand being driven through the agri-
food sector and associated cluster that 
accounts for a significant proportion of the 
district’s economy. However, the impact of 
the end of furlough and the end of the covid 
crisis business grants schemes is still being 
closely monitored. The ‘high street’ 
economy within the district (and the UK as 
a whole) is also still adjusting to the 
impacts of the pandemic. For these 
reasons, the scoring has been retained as 
unchanged.  

Matthew Hogan 

P
age 35



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current 
Risk Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

access to labour, logistics 
capacity, carbon 
reduction and supply-
chain challenges that 
impede growth. The 
council's longer term 
economic strategy of 
supporting innovation and 
productivity in the core 
agri-food sector to 
overcome some of these 
challenges is intended to 
further support this 
resilience, therefore 
supporting the wider 
supply chain and 
business cluster within 
the district. In terms of 
employment and 
redundancies, the council 
continues to work closely 
with the DWP and local 
businesses to minimise 
the potential impacts of 
large scale redundancies 
if they arise. To support 
with Covid-19 recovery,  
he council has mobilised 
a ‘growth and recovery’ 
scheme to support local 
businesses that have a 
desire to grow, including 
businesses within the 
high street economy . The 
council is also closely 
monitoring the impact of 

P
age 36



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current 
Risk Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

the end of the UK/EU 
transition arrangement on 
local businesses. 

Decision Making 

The risk of a 
reduction in council 
democratic decision 
making due to the 
Covid-19 pandemic 
or other significant 
event. 

Mobilisation of the use of 
technology for remote 
meetings. Provision made 
for emergency powers. 
Regular review of 
constitutional provisions. 
Back up delegations in 
place for absence of key 
members and officers. 

12 

 

3 4 

 
Risk remains unchanged, Covid restrictions 
have now lifted, compliance with 
Building/Employee guidance is required. 
 
We have reviewed seating arrangements 
and comms to members and officers in 
order to minimise unnecessary close 
contact. Further technology improvements 
are underway. 

Mark Stinson 

Rhonda Booth 

Council Financial 
Positions 

The council's 
medium term 
financial strategy has 
identified a budget 
gap and this has 
been exacerbated by 
the Covid pandemic. 
The risk will be that 
this budget gap 
cannot effectively be 
bridged during a 
pandemic and sums 
expended on 
maintaining and 
adapting services 
through the 
pandemic are not 
fully recovered from 
government. 

As part of the 2020/21 
budget process a number 
of efficiency opportunities 
were identified to reduce 
the budget gap. Despite 
the impact and challenge 
of Covid on resources 
progress has been made 
on service specific 
initiatives. 

12 

 

3 4 

 

As part of the 2021/22 budget process an 
efficiency programme was established 
which identified new savings 
opportunities/income sources and monitors 
the financial impact of implemented savings  
on the medium term financial strategy, 
including the in year budget monitoring 
position. Progress has been made on a 
number of initiatives and a progress update 
will be made as part of the next round of 
finance reporting. 
 
  

Samantha 

Knowles P
age 37



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current 
Risk Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

Waste Collections 

The loss of staff due 
to sickness and/or 
the need to self-
isolate could put our 
ability to deliver our 
mandatory collection 
services at risk. 
There is also a risk 
that our 
discretionary, paid 
for garden waste 
collections may also 
be impacted. Without 
proper 
communication to 
residents there could 
be a reputational as 
well as operational 
risk. 

Safe working practices 
have been adopted to 
ensure continuity of 
services. SHDC mitigate 
the risk by having good 
relationships with 
agencies to support with 
additional staff where 
required. Further to this 
the team have identified 
the service priorities and 
would ensure that our 
mandatory services are 
delivered. This can flex 
depending upon the 
number of staff absent. 
We work closely with 
comms to ensure 
message are shared with 
residents of any potential 
impacts to services 

12 

 

3 4 

 

We continue to monitor the risk 
assessment in place which supports the 
controls in place to mitigate this risk. We 
are working closely with partners to learn 
lessons from others in the sector that have 
experienced outbreaks and continue to 
watch for guidance from experts such as 
WISH. Currently we are seeing that the 
number of HGV drivers available via 
agencies is reduced and work is ongoing to 
mitigate the risk, including understanding 
the market and terms of employment that 
will attract drivers to SHDC. In response to 
this we have proactively addressed these 
issues in recent reports to Cabinet and Full 
Council 

Charlotte Paine 

Vulnerability risk 

That the council fails 
to ensure that 
vulnerable residents 
are supported, 
especially in 
response to the 
Covid-19 pandemic 

During the pandemic 
there have been three 
'groups' of vulnerable 
residents. 'Clinically 
Extremely Vulnerable' 
(shielded) 'Clinically 
vulnerable' and 'other 
vulnerable'. There are 
clear methods in place to 
identify and support 
residents with targeted 
support pathways. For 
Clinically Extremely 
Vulnerable residents, this 

12 

 

4 3 

 
Nationally, Shielding for Extremely 
Vulnerable People has ended. However, 
there remains additional advice and 
precautions that clinically vulnerable 
residents should take. There will also be 
rollout of  
Recovery work around vulnerability is 
focused on support for individuals, 
voluntary sector and system enabling 
across county partnerships.  Key 
workstreams include; 
-Covid-19 support for those CEVs with 
ongoing needs as well as self-isolation 
support for those who have tested positive 

Emily Holmes 

P
age 38



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current 
Risk Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

is being monitored 
through the Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum 
framework and outcomes 
reported to central 
government. Funding and 
schemes are being 
responded to to maximise 
the support to local 
residents. 

- advice and support through the Financial 
Inclusion Partnership 
-Support for vulnerable Households over 
Winter months 
- links with Homelessness Strategic 
Partnership 
 
Risk level has not changed given the 
Winter months approaching.  Mitigations 
are in place and risk score will be 
reassessed next quarter. 

Technology 
infrastructure 
failure 

The loss of ICT 
impacting upon the 
organisation to 
operate effectively 
and deliver services 
to residents. The 
Council relies heavily 
on the ICT 
infrastructure for 
normal business 
operation. Whilst 
resilience is built into 
the environment, the 
loss of a service is 
always possible. 
Depending on the 
service lost, the 
impact could be 
severe 

The Council has a series 
of resilience 
arrangements in place 
through its service 
provider, PSPS. Work is 
contiunous to ensure 
these are fit for purpose 
across a range of areas. 

10 

 

5 2 

 

No significant change to this risk, any loss 
of key systems would have a severe impact 
to service delivery.  ICT are currently 
investigating options for the improved 
resiliency around the main data and 
application storage. 

Jackie Wright 

Limited Firewall 
Resilience 

  

A support contract is 
maintained which covers 
component failure. Also, 
configuration backups are 
regularly taken to facilitate 

10 

 

5 2 

 
PSPS are currently reviewing replacement 
firewall options with configuration in a 
resilient manner. However, it should be 
noted that addressing firewall resilience 
does not remove all the single points of 

Mark Starkey 

P
age 39



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current 
Risk Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

the rebuilding of the 
current device or any 
replacement. 

failure that exist within the external network 
infrastructure. The Council will still rely on a 
single WAN (wide area network) link and a 
single POP (point of presence) from BT. 

Changes in 
legislation and 
policy in response 
to Covid19 

The risk of the 
council's ability to 
adapt to changes in 
legislation and policy, 
both in terms of pace 
and scale of change. 
The subsequent 
impact of the council 
in responding to both 
new statutory 
requirements and 
ensuring compliance 
through appropriate 
understanding and 
resourcing. 

The Senior management 
continue to monitor any 
emerging legislative 
changes and guidance, 
including the Autumn 
Winter Plan, and highlight 
with Leadership Team 
and Members as needed. 

6 

 

3 2 

 

There has been a reduction in Covid 
legislation and policy enforced by the 
Council which has enabled the Public 
Protection Service to re-focus on core 
statutory responsibilities. 

Donna Hall 

Outsourcing/Servi
ce provider failure 

Due to restrictions 
and reductions as a 
result of the 
pandemic, some 
sectors and suppliers 
will be in a 
challenging financial 
position. This could 
result in a failure to 
provide contracted 
services, works or 
supplies, or 
ultimately insolvency; 
i.e. supplier failure. 

The team have updated 
supplier risk logs to 
identify which contracts 
are likely to be affected. 
This will be followed with 
discussions with suppliers 
on business continuity 
and financial mitigations 
being made. The council 
will monitor and review 
our supplier situation to 
ensure business 
continuity where 
necessary. 

9 

 

3 3 

 

Constant review is underway of our 
outsourcing and service providers. 

Sam Knowles 

P
age 40



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current 
Risk Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

Performance of 
PSPS contract 

The risk being that 
the services provided 
to the council via its 
contract with PSPS 
fails to meet the 
needs and 
expectations of the 
council 

Daily and weekly PIs are 
provided to Management 
Team. A new contract has 
been completed. 
Contractural meetings are 
attended monthly with 
separate meetings as 
necessary. Performance 
is monitored closley. 
There remains a need for 
outstanding Service Level 
Agreements to be 
updated/agreed of which 
the client officer continues 
to work with PSPS closely 
to ensure the council and 
its partner work effectively 
together. 

9 

 

3 3 

 

 
No change to the risk level at this stage, 
but we do need to be mindful of recent 
changes affecting PSPS - including the 
onboarding of BBC in the company and the 
new partnership between SHDC, BBC and 
ELDC. Potential impact areas will be within 
the ICT provision due to the system 
alignment required across the proposed 
partnership. Recruitment and retention 
remains an increasing issue across all 
Councils and PSPS. 

James Gilbert 

Emily Spicer 

 

Reductions in 
council 
performance 

A decline in the 
performance of 
service delivery as a 
consequence of the 
pandemic and other 
factors 

In recent months the 
council's internal 
performance monitoring 
framework has been 
reviewed. Weekly 
performance and 
intelligence indicators are 
shared with members and 
officers. The councils new 
SLT will review 
performance monthly. 
Performance is reported 
to PMP on a quarterly 
basis for scrutiny. Clear 
objectives and outcomes 
are set, reviewed and 
performance monitored 

12 

 

3 4 

  This risk has been increased in likelihood 
for this quarter, this decision has been 
made considering current council 
performance, the key area of performance 
to note at present is the customer contact 
centre. Within the service speed to answer 
and call duration times have increased over 
this quarter. We continue to see resourcing 
challenges through exceptionally high 
levels of attrition within the service. The 
team have instigated a short term recovery 
plan through targeted recruitment, focused 
available resourcing hours on the phone, 
refreshed a targeted approach to training 
strategy. Improvements are starting to be 
seen, through this approach, seeing 
average speed of answer reduce to 164 

James Gilbert 

Corey Gooch 

P
age 41



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current 
Risk Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

by managers. Teams 
holding monthly meetings 
to support staff pastorally 
and operationally. 
Managers are in close 
contact with HR 
colleagues across a 
range of areas 

seconds in the last week of September. 
Recruitment and training to the multiple 
vacancies will have the positive response 
to this short term downward trend in 
performance but for now we feel it is 
prudent to increase this risk for the time 
being. 

Regulatory 
Compliance 

The risk of failing to 
comply with the 
Council’s general 
regulatory obligations 
due to the volume 
and pace of Covid-
specific legislative 
change; 
new/amended 
guidance; and the 
diversion of 
resources into the 
Council’s emergency 
response. 

Management of these 
risks is spread across the 
authority – with many 
service areas having their 
own professional 
resources, systems, 
processes and 
professional body 
membership with 
associated information 
resources. Daily updates 
on key policy and 
legislative matters is 
wider than just a Covid 
update. The Council’s 
Legal Team receive 
regular legal updates 
which are shared as 
appropriate. Officers in 
the Legal Team and 
across service areas have 
access to various short 
webinars, podcasts, and 
other online training (such 
as recent data protection 
training rolled out to all 
staff). 

8 

 

4 2 

 

 

 
No change to risk profile this month. These 
risks are spread across the authority and 
are therefore managed by a number of 
officers. Information continues to be shared 
on Covid and non-Covid matters by the 
Senior Change, Business Improvement and 
Performance Partner and legal 
developments are monitored by the Legal 
Team. The refreshed Corporate 
Governance group for the Partnership is in 
place to have oversight of governance 
generally. 

Mark Stinson 

Rhonda Booth 

P
age 42



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current 
Risk Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

Retention of staff 
The recruitment of 
new and retention of 
existing staff 

The workforce strategy is 
proposed to be aligned 
across the 3 Councils and 
this process is underway. 
A development 
programme is in place to 
assist with both personal 
and professional 
development. This 
programme sits alongside 
a package of personal 
support for staff. 
Managers are 
encouraged to have 
regular 'one to ones' with 
staff to ensure that they 
are fully supported in their 
roles 

8 

 

4 2 

 

A Workforce Development Board is now in 
place from September 2021 as part of the 
new operational governance arrangements 
for the Partnership. This board will assess 
key risk areas where retention is a 
particular concern and put plans in place to 
mitigate the risk.  

James Gilbert 

External 
Reputation 

The council's 
external reputation is 
impacted negatively 
as a result of poor 
decision making, 
failures in service 
delivery, and/or a 
deterioration in 
external relationships 

The council's reputation is 
managed is a variety of 
ways throughout the 
organisation, including at 
director-level (Gold) 
through to service 
manager level. An internal 
governance structure is in 
place to consider 
forthcoming decisions and 
political matters. The 
council's communication 
team play a key role in 
that internal governance 
structure to ensure that 
matters of external 
reputation are 

8 

 

4 2 

  

A new operational governance framework 
has come into place across the partnership. 
Pro-active and effective communications 
are in place to manage any issues as and 
when they may arise. 

Rob Barlow 

P
age 43



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current 
Risk Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

appropriately considered. 

Capacity to deal 
with more than 
one significant 
incident 

The ability and the 
capacity of the 
organisation to 
respond to and 
manage concurrent 
emergencies 
alongside responding 
to the current Covid-
19 pandemic and 
delivering critical 
business as usual 
services 

SHDC has plans in place 
to deal with additional 
emergencies. The 
resources to deliver on 
those plans is kept under 
close review through 
service managers and the 
council's Management 
Team. Through the 
Lincolnshire Resilience 
Forum, the council 
remains involved in 
planning for concurrent 
exercises, including 
recent simulation 
exercises to test systems 
and processes. The 
Business Continuity plans 
of individual services 
reflect planning for 
dealing with more than 
one incident. 

6 

 

3 2 

 

As a council we have faced events over the 
past year running parallel with COVID-19 
challenges. Our business continuity plans 
have been overall effective however any 
amends have been included to ensure any 
learning is incorporated for future 
challenges. 

Christian Allen 

Clint Bell 

COVID-19 
Outbreak 
response 

The council does not 
respond effectively to 
local outbreaks, and 
that the council has 
insufficient 
competent and 
trained officers to 
deal with covid 
outbreak 
management, both in 
the community and 
also internally 

The Public Protection 
service continue to work 
with LCC and the other 
Districts to co-ordinate 
outbreak response in line 
with the County Outbreak 
Management Plan. The 
LCC OIRR (Outbreak 
Investigation and Rapid 
Response) Team monitor 
case data from contact 
tracing and share any 

6 

 

3 2 

  

Case rates continue to fluctuate, but the 
team currently has additional funded 
temporary resource to assist with outbreak 
response. 

Donna Hall 

P
age 44



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current 
Risk Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

trends or outbreak 
concerns.  
The Senior Manager also 
attends the LRF Outbreak 
Management Cell and the 
County Covid Health 
Protection Board. 
Funding from 
Government via LCC 
enables additional 
resource in the team to 
manage the additional 
workload, and this is 
expected to continue to 
April 2022. 
 

Safeguarding 

That the council fails 
to meet its 
safeguarding 
responsibilities 

There are formal audit 
frameworks for 
Safeguarding Children 
and Safeguarding adults 
which are monitored for 
assurance through the 
Lincolnshire Safeguarding 
Children's Partnership 
and Safeguarding Adults 
Partnership which are 
statutory requirements. 
There are also emerging 
assessment frameworks 
for Domestic Abuse, 
PREVENT and modern 
day slavery through the 
Safer Lincolnshire 
Partnership. These audits 
and assessments provide 

6 

 

3 2 

 

Clear referral pathways, training and 
supervision mitigate the risk of failing to 
meet safeguarding responsibilities and in 
turn the risk of serious harm coming to 
vulnerable people.  A review of 
Safeguarding policies and procedures will 
take place in Q4. 

Emily Holmes 

P
age 45



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current 
Risk Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

key areas for meeting 
duties and obligations and 
predominantly focus on 
leadership, policies, 
training and appropriate 
case management from 
frontline officers. 
Internally, the actions 
from previous 
assessments are being 
reviewed and action plan 
being developed for any 
gaps. Frontline casework 
is monitored through 
direct supervision. 

Staff Presentation 
(availability/turnin
g up for work) 

The impact of staff 
presentation upon 
organisational 
arrangements and 
service delivery 

As a result of the Covid-
19, the council regularly 
reviews staff presentation 
and sickness. HR and 
managers are monitoring 
sickness and have a 
process in place for 
sickness reporting. SHDC 
are following H&S 
procedures for staff and 
these are being monitored 
and adhered too on a 
weekly basis. Mitigations 
are in place to support 
staff sickness levels, 
including health and 
wellbeing support 
alongside flu jabs. In 
terms of the impact of 
school closures on staff 

4 

 

2 2 

 

Assessment has put this risk at the same 
score as previous, there have been no 
significant changes or issues that would 
change the scoring at this time. This issue 
is considered weekly at the Councils Senior 
Leadership Team meeting. 

SLT 

P
age 46



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current 
Risk Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

presentation. 

Internal 
communications 
breakdown 

Poor quality internal 
communication 
amongst and 
between the staff, 
management team 
and member cohort, 
impacting upon the 
function of the 
organisation 

The comms team 
currently lead on regular 
staff and member 
engagement and 
communications. This 
includes regular emails to 
staff, videos from the 
leader and senior 
managers, and regular 
all-member emails. In 
order to develop this 
further, the comms team 
will present a new 
detailed 'comms 
calendar', which will help 
inform staff, members and 
council partners on key 
messaging, campaigns 
and information. All 
service managers to 
update comms on a 
regular/weekly basis. 

4 

 

2 2 

  

The comms team currently lead on regular 
staff and member engagement and 
communications. This includes regular 
emails to staff, videos from the leader and 
senior managers, and regular all-member 
emails. A new partnership-wide newsletter 
has recently been created, as well as staff 
partnership social media groups, to help 
create an awareness across all three 
councils of the activities and actions taking 
place and ensure that everyone feels like 
they have the latest updates available to 
them.  

 

Shaun Gibbons 

External 
communications 
breakdown 

Poor quality external 
communication with 
stakeholders, 
residents and the 
wider public impacts 
upon the council's 
reputation and its 
ability to effectively 
deliver services 

External comms are 
quality checked by 
Comms to ensure that the 
messaging is effective 
and relevant to our 
residents. The team also 
gather statistics across a 
range of areas to 
understand how much 
interaction is being 
achieved through social 
media channels for 

4 

 

2 2 

  

Risk score remains the same, external 
comms continue to be checked by the 
team, training and education are provided 
where appropriate as well as best practice. 

Shaun Gibbons 

P
age 47



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current 
Risk Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

example and adapt 
messages and channel 
shift to ensure messages 
are being heard and well 
received. To further 
mitigate this risk, training 
is being undertaken for 
both officers and 
members. By increasing 
the number and topics 
covered, the comms team 
will be able to in time 
create greater capacity 
and resilience and 
messaging will be even 
more effective. 

 
  

P
age 48



 
Report of: Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC  
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee 11 November 2021 
 
Author:  Faye Haywood, Head of Internal Audit 
 
Subject: Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity 
 
Purpose: This report examines the progress made between 29 July 2021 to 1 November 

2021 in relation to the completion of the Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22. 
 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That members note the completion of the internal audit plan of work for 2021/22. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee receive updates on progress made against the 

annual internal audit plan. This report forms part of the overall reporting requirements to 
assist the Council in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the internal audit activity.  

 
1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit Executive to report to the 

Governance and Audit Committee the performance of internal audit relative to its agreed 
plan, including any significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting 
at South Holland is to each meeting.  

 
To comply with the above the report identifies:   

o Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan; 
o Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year;  
o Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and 
o Performance measures to date. 

 
2.0 CURRENT PROGRESS 
 
2.1 Progress against delivering the 2021/22 plan of work is included within the report.   

 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the Progress 

Report on Internal Audit Activity.  In doing so, the Committee is ensuring that the Internal 
Audit Service remains compliant with professional auditing standards and are fulfilling their 
terms of reference. 
 

4.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed and ensuring that they are 

working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities. 
 
 
4.2 Financial  

Page 49

Agenda Item 5.



 
4.2.1 The Internal Audit Plan will be delivered within the approved budget for 2021/22. 
 
4.3 Risk Management  
 
44.3.1 Internal Audit planning starts with the Council’s key risks, which then directs the audit plan 

for the financial year. Internal Audit reports then identify risks and control weaknesses 
within the Council which are highlighted in this report, with appropriate management action 
being agreed to mitigate these risks within agreed timeframes. 

 

Background papers: - None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Faye Haywood Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC 
Telephone Number: 01508 533873 
Email: fhaywood@s-norfolk.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Faye Haywood, Head of Internal Audit for 
South Holland DC 
 
Key Decision: No 
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity 
 

 

Page 50



  
 

Page 1 of 8 
 

Eastern Internal Audit Services 

 

 
South Holland District Council 

Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity 

Period Covered: 21 July 2021 to 1 November 2021 

Responsible Officer: Faye Haywood – Head of Internal Audit for South Holland District 
Council 

 

CONTENTS 

1. INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................... 2 

2. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN .......... 2 

4.  THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK .................................................. 2 

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK ......... 5 

APPENDIX 2 – EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES ............................................................... 6 

 

  

Page 51



  
 

Page 2 of 8 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This report is issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in relation 
to the internal audit activity.  

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to 
report to the Audit Committee on the performance of internal audit relative to its plan, 
including any significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting 
and the specific content are for the Authority to determine. 

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes:  

• Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan; 

• Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year; 

• Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and 

• Performance Indicator outcomes to date. 

2. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

2.1 The Annual Internal Audit Plan was approved on 29 July 2021. Since it was approved, 
there have been no significant changes made to the plan.  

3.  PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK 

3.1 Appendix 1 covers progress made against the 2021/22 internal audit plan. A total of 
47.5 days of work has been completed equating to 24% of the overall agreed Internal 
Audit Plan.  

Audit Lincolnshire’s coverage includes the testing of key financial systems managed 
by Public Sector Partnership Services (previously Compass Point Business Services) 
on behalf of South Holland District Council.  The Head of Internal Audit places reliance 
on the work carried out by Audit Lincolnshire when concluding on the overall Internal 
Audit Opinion.  

4.  THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK 

4.1 On completion of each individual audit an assurance level is awarded using the 
following definitions: 

 Substantial Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of 
suitably designed internal controls in place upon which the organisation relies to 
manage the risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the 
process, and which at the time of our review were being consistently applied. 

 Reasonable Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal 
controls in place, however these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisation’s 
management of risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of 
the process. Improvements are required to enhance the controls to mitigate these 
risks. 

 Limited Assurance: Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are 
insufficient to ensure that the organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to 
the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant 
improvements are required to improve the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls 
to mitigate these risks. 

 No Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown 
or absence of core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon them 

Page 52



  
 

Page 3 of 8 
 

to manage risk to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the 
process. Immediate action is required to improve the controls required to mitigate these 
risks. 

4.2 Recommendations made on completion of audit work are prioritised using the following 
definitions: 

 Urgent (priority one): Fundamental control issue on which action to implement should 
be taken within 1 month. 

 Important (priority two): Control issue on which action to implement should be taken 
within 3 months. 

 Needs attention (priority three): Control issue on which action to implement should 
be taken within 6 months. 

4.3 In addition, on completion of audit work “Operational Effectiveness Matters” are 
proposed, these set out matters identified during the assignment where there may be 
opportunities for service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational 
efficiency and enhance the delivery of value for money services. These are for 
management to consider and are not part of the follow up process. 

4.4 During the period covered by the report Internal Audit has issued one final report.  

 Audit Assurance High 
 

Medium Low 

Covid-19 Business Grants Substantial 0 0 2 

The Executive Summary is attached at Appendix 2; a full copy of this report can be 
requested by members.  

4.5 In addition to the above-mentioned audit, Audit Lincolnshire has concluded their 
Housing Benefit Subsidy work, producing a report for External Audit with a substantial 
grading given overall. A total of 61 cases were reviewed in respect of payments made 
in the 2020/21 financial year.  One error was noted that did not have a signficant impact 
on the benefit paid or subsidy claimed, therefore no formal recommendation was 
raised.  

5. PERFORMANCE MEASURES – Eastern Internal Audit Services  

5.1 The Internal Audit Services contract includes a suite of key performance measures 
against which TIAA will be reviewed on a quarterly basis.  

5.2 There are individual requirements for performance in relation to each measure; 
however, performance will be assessed on an overall basis as follows: 

• 9-11 KPIs have met target = Green Status. 

• 5-8 KPIs have met target = Amber Status. 

• 4 or below have met target = Red Status. 

Where performance is amber or red a Performance Improvement Plan will be 
developed by TIAA and agreed with the Internal Audit Consortium Manager to ensure 
that appropriate action is taken.  

 

Page 53



  
 

Page 4 of 8 
 

5.3 The contractor has concluded all allocated quarter two work and is making progress 
on quarter three work.   The   Covid-19 Business Grants work was not completed in 
time for the quarter two deadline of 10 working days after quarter end. The KPI 
requirements were not met. The majority of work is profiled into quarter three and four 
of 2021-22, therefore the risk of delays to overall plan delivery are being closely 
monitored.  

Page 54



 

   

 

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK  

 

P
age 55



 

   

 

APPENDIX 2 – EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES  

Assurance Review of the SH/22/03 Covid-19 Business Grants Arrangements 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS 

 

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational 

Data collection, 

processing, tools for post 

assurance checks, 

assessment of progress 

and system accuracy 

0 0 1 0 

Risk Monitoring 0 0 1 0 

Total 0 0 2 0 

 

SCOPE 

The objective of the audit was to review the systems and controls in place within Covid Government Grants, to help confirm that guidance was clear, internal 

processing and checks were/are adequate, relevant resources assigned, funding arrangements in place and submissions to Government adequate 

P
age 56



 

Page 7 of 8 
 

RATIONALE 

 

• The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Substantial Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance 

opinion has been derived as a result of two 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work. It is accepted that both 

recommendations relate to controls in administering grant schemes that are now complete. Therefore, they have been made for future reference should there 

be a need for the Government to provide further financial support of this type.   

• A direction of travel is not applicable since the areas under scope have not previously been subject to internal audit scrutiny. 

POSITIVE FINDINGS 

 

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently: 

• Policies were enacted by the Council for administering the discretionary grant schemes, and were in accordance with Government guidance. 

• Application forms were developed in accordance with Government guidance. 

• Internal procedures and checklists were created to assist the processing of the grant applications. Pre-payment assurance steps were proactively built into the 

checklist to mitigate identified fraud risks. Subsequent post-payment assurance checks have identified zero instances of suspected fraud.  

• System reports and returns to Government were assigned to designated personnel, and shown to be completed at defined intervals.  

• New Burdens Grants were utilised by the Council to fund additional resource requirements for the processing of grant applications. 

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED 

 

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where two 'needs attention' recommendations have been made. These are for future reference should there be a 

need for the Government to provide further financial support of this type.   

Data collection, processing, tools for post assurance checks, assessment of progress and system accuracy 

• Internal performance measures to be used in order to monitor processing times versus resources, so as to ensure the Council is able to meet demand. 

P
age 57



 

Page 8 of 8 
 

Risk Monitoring 

• Risk assessment to be completed, and regularly updated, for administering any future Covid business grants.  

 

*Note that the aforementioned matters raised should be considered in light of past and present grant activity.    

Operational Effectiveness Matters 

There are no operational effectiveness matters for management to consider. 

Previous audit recommendations 

This area has not been subject to previous internal audit scrutiny.  

Other Issues Noted 

As a result of the diversion of the business rates team to set up and deliver business grants, the NNDR system was not up to date at the onset of the Small Business 

and Retail, Hospitality, and Leisure grant schemes.  Weekly reports received by the contracted (PSPS) business rates team have a target processing time of 10 

business days. As a result of the priority to deliver business grants, these reports were not being processed within the target at the start of these schemes. To account 

for this, all applications were checked against pending Valuation Office Agency (VOA) update schedules, as a required step within the grant application checklist 

created for these schemes. Following completion of the grant schemes, and the return of the team to business as usual, the VOA schedules are processed within the 

10-day target.  

 

 

P
age 58



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC 
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee, 11 November 2021 
 
Author:  Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager 
 
Subject: Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations 
 
Purpose: This report provides members with the position on the progress made by 

management in implementing agreed Internal Audit recommendations as at 31 
March 2021 to 1 November 2021.  

 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That members note the contents of the report. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee receives an update on management’s implementation 

of agreed audit recommendations. This report forms part of the overall reporting requirements 
to assist the Council in discharging the responsibilities in relation to its Internal Audit Service. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit Executive to establish a 
process to monitor and follow up management actions to ensure that they have been 
effectively implemented or that senior management have accepted the risk of not taking 
action.  

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes the status of agreed actions. 

 
2.0  CURRENT PROGRESS 
 

2.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are asked to receive and note the current position in 
relation to the completion of agreed audit recommendations. 

 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the Follow Up 

Report on the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations.  In doing so, the Committee 
is ensuring that it is kept up to date and informed as to the extent to which management has 
progressed Internal Audit recommendations as at 1 November 2021. 
 

4.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed are working towards the 

efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities. 
 
 
 

Page 59

Agenda Item 6.



 
4.2 Risk Management  
 
4.2.1 Failure to implement or improve internal controls may lead to the risks associated with those 

controls materialising. 
 

Background papers: - None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Faye Haywood Head of Internal Audit 
Telephone Number: 01508 533873 
Email: fhaywood@s-norfolk.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Faye Haywood, Head of Internal Audit.  
 
Key Decision: No 
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations 
 

 

Page 60



Page 1 of 8 

 

Eastern Internal Audit Services 

 

 
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations 

Period Covered: 31 March 2021 to 1 November 2021 

Responsible Officer: Faye Haywood, Head of Internal Audit  

CONTENTS 

1. INTRODUCTION                                                                                                             2 

2. FOLLOW UP PROCESS                                                                                         2 

3.  STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS                                                                            2 

APPENDIX 1 – SUMMARY POSITION ALL INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 4 

APPENDIX 2 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2017/18 5 

APPENDIX 3 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2019/20 6 

APPENDIX 4 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 2020/21 8 

 

  

Page 61



Page 2 of 8 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This report is being issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in relation 
to the internal audit activity. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to establish 
a process to monitor and follow up management actions to ensure that they have been 
effectively implemented or that senior management have accepted the risk of not taking action. 
The frequency of reporting and the specific content are for the Authority to determine. 

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes: 

• The status of agreed actions.  

2. FOLLOW UP PROCESS  

 Eastern Internal Audit Services Recommendations  

2.1 As a result of audit recommendations raised by TIAA Ltd, management agree action to ensure 
implementation within a specific timeframe and by a responsible officer.  

2.2 EIAS recommendations are subsequently uploaded on to the Council’s performance 
management system – Pentana – with this alerting management to update progress in 
advance of the due date through email alerts. Management action to date is then input with 
internal audit then either verifying the evidence provided and closing the recommendation or 
agreeing to the extension date provided. 

2.3 Ordinarily, escalation is also in place to deal with non-responses or recommendations which 
have been overdue for a long time through the Performance, Risk and Audit Board and 
through the Finance Board as required due to the statutory requirements of the Section 151 
Officer to ensure that appropriate risk mitigation action is being taken. Ultimately further 
escalation is through the Executive Management Team and then the Committee.  

Public Sector Partnership Services (PSPS) Audit Recommendations 

2.4 Audit Lincolnshire (formally East Lindsay District Council) undertake the internal audit reviews 
of the Public Sector Partnership Services key finance functions. Recommendations raised are 
then subsequently monitored by Audit Lincolnshire, with updates provided to the Head of 
Internal Audit for South Holland on a quarterly basis. These recommendations are recorded 
on Pentana, which enables greater oversight by both PSPS and South Holland management.  

3.  STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 Appendix 1 to this report shows the details of the progress made to date in relation to the 
implementation of all agreed internal audit recommendations and reflects the year in which 
the audit was undertaken to enable the Committee to easily identify old outstanding 
recommendations. The table also identifies outstanding recommendations that have 
previously been reported to this Committee and then those which have become outstanding 
during this period.  

3.2 In 2017/18 a total of 85 recommendations were raised by both internal audit providers.  

  Of those, 84 have been implemented by management, one urgent recommendation is 
outstanding.   

Page 62



Page 3 of 8 

 

3.3 The management responses in relation to the outstanding urgent recommendation can be 
seen at Appendix 2 of the report.  

Number raised  85  

Complete 84 99% 

Outstanding 1 1% 

3.4 In 2019/20 a total of 84 recommendations were agreed. Of these 76 have been completed, 
eight are outstanding (four important and four needs attention). Outstanding important 
recommendations can be seen at Appendix 3 of the report.  

Number raised  84  

Complete 76 90% 

Outstanding 8 10% 

3.5 In 2020/21 a total of 28 recommendations were raised in total. Of these ten have been 
completed, three important and six needs attention recommendations are outstanding and two 
are not yet due. Details of outstanding important recommendations can be found at Appendix 
4 of this report.  

Number raised  28  

Complete 17 61% 

Outstanding 9 32% 

Not yet due 2 7% 

3.6 We are pleased to report that in 2021/22 two needs attention recommendations have been 
raised and already completed.  

3.7 Progress continues to be made in addressing historical outstanding recommendations. The 
internal audit team will continue to work with management to verify and close 
recommendations.    

Page 63



Page 4 of 8 

 

APPENDIX 1 – SUMMARY POSITION ALL INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 64



Page 5 of 8 

 

APPENDIX 2 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2017/18 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

SH1809 Asset 
Management 

Property Services 
Manager 

A programmed review  of all leases 
is to be undertaken, this will include; 
Lease agreements be entered into 
for existing tenants, Lease 
agreements be entered into for new 
tenants and a review of rent 
increments given to long term 
tenants on or before the expiration 
of their current lease period. 

Urgent Outstanding  21/06/2018 31st 
December 
2021 

Management update: I can confirm that we are 
now well under way where leases are to be 
renewed with most tenants engaging proactively 
in the renewal process. 
 
The original target date, end of March for 
completion of all new leases became unrealistic 
due to some tenants still unsure whether they 
were going to continue with renting the units with 
uncertainty around the pandemic impacts. This 
uncertainty continued through the summer of 
2021 meaning the timetable to secure all 
renewals has had to flex. The Asset team also 
identified through the summer that further legal 
resource was required so approached Lincs 
Legal to take over all our outstanding legal work. 
This includes the outstanding renewals and any 
new leases for all the industrial units. From July 
2021, Lincs Legal have been fully instructed and 
working through a programme of lease renewals. 
Where a small numbers of tenants haven’t 
engaged or have been in breach, steps are being 
taken to secure possession where necessary for 
those units ready for reletting. The last unit to be 
vacant has recently been relet meaning there is 
currently 100% occupancy of the Councils 50 
industrial units.   
 

 
 
  

P
age 65



Page 6 of 8 

 

APPENDIX 3 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2019/20 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

SH2003 
Strategic 
Housing 

Head of Delivery - 
Caroline Hannon 
Place based 

A development strategy be 
produced to define the work of the 
Strategic Housing team, in terms of 
the different development routes 
available, objectives for of 
delivering new housing, the 
considerations in choosing a 
particular development route and 
the approval process to be 
followed. 

Important Outstanding 31/07/2020 31/03/2022 Capacity to deliver this project was impacted by 
the response to the pandemic with relevant 
officers redeployed and a focus in other areas. 
An extension up to 31/03/2022 has been 
requested, with several steps being taken to 
resolve the recommendation.  

Risk Mitigation  
A number of key work streams have completed 

or are well underway. Consultation with relevant 

Portfolio Holders is ongoing to ensure they are 

engaged in the process. Decisions on funding 

new schemes, ahead of adoption of the 

Development Strategy, are being taken by 

Council and accordingly there is no risk to the 

authority from the delay to the adoption of the 

strategy. The next steps which are currently 

taking priority include:  

• Housing Development Framework for 

the HRA. This framework will agree 

the parameters for the spend of the 

approved capital programme for the 

HRA and will identify the types of 

delivery which should be pursued and 

the appropriate governance route.  

• A review of the SHDC property 

specification to ensure new homes are 

suitable as long-term assets.  

• A review of the shared ownership 

sales process to improve the customer 

journey.  

• A longer term strategy for investment 

in Welland Homes. This will include 

agreeing the strategy for reinvestment 

in existing stock (major component 

replacements); disposals strategy; and 

consideration of whether to provide 

further investment to extend the 

current Welland Homes Business Plan 

beyond 60 homes.  

 

The HRA Delivery Framework was presented to 

Policy Development Panel on 21st September 

and an updated version will be presented at 

Cabinet on 26th October and Council on 24th 

November.   

P
age 66



Page 7 of 8 

 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

SH2020 Car 
Parks 
 

Environmental 
Services Manager 

The Council to undertake a formal 
review of its cash collection 
services in order to ensure 
compliance with Financial 
Procedure Rules in terms of 
demonstrating value for money and 
openness with competition. In 
doing so, to include any impact with 
cash holdings following the 
introduction in card payments. 
 
 
 

Important  Outstanding 31/01/2021  The toilets upgrade has been passed to assets 
and new portfolio holders are driving the direction, 
which means that the decision on payments for 
these has not yet been concluded. However, we 
have introduced card payments and pay by app 
options at our machines which has reduced our 
cash income and provided users with a wider 
variety of payment options. 
 
 

PFINACT124a 
Accountancy 
Services 

Head of Financial 
Services PSPS 

1.Treasury procedures should be 
reviewed to ensure they remain 
reflective of current practice. More 
widely, resilience should be 
considered around the Treasury 
function in the event of the event of 
any long-term absence. 

Important Outstanding 31/03/2021 30/12/2021 Extension requested to enable a thorough 
review of policies to ensure they are reflective of 
the current system and processes. We are 
currently picking up various mid-term reports 
alongside Q2 monitoring whilst trying to 
understand the current processes and 
suggesting improvements/changes across all 3 
clients. 
 

SH2010 
Procurement 
and Contract 
Management 

Assistance Director 
Finance   

Financial Procedure Rules be 
updated to include processes to be 
adopted for individual non 
contractual suppliers where 
aggregated spend in year is likely 
to and or exceeds the tender 
threshold.  

Important Outstanding 31/05/2021 31/03/2022 Updates drafted by Breckland Procurement 
Team, these are currently being reviewed by the 
Assistant Director Finance, prior to be formally 
recommended to council for inclusion in Contract 
Standing Orders 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 67



Page 8 of 8 

 

APPENDIX 4 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 2020/21  

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

SH2108 Asset 
Management 

Strategic and 
Operational Property 
Manager 

The Asset Management Strategy 

(AMS), Corporate Land and 

Property Policy, and the Land 

Sales Procedure be updated and 

merged as one document and be 

made available to relevant staff 

members. 

 

Medium  Outstanding 29/10/2021 31st March 
2022 

A revised date to have the new Asset 
Management Strategy adopted is 31st March 
2022 to coincide with the start of the new 
financial year. The AMS whilst place based will 
now need to reflect the new 3 Council 
management arrangements from 1st October 
2021. It will also need to reflect the ongoing 
asset impacts that the pandemic is having on 
use and utilisation of operational buildings some 
of which have only recently been reopened.  

SH2108 Asset 
Management 

Strategic and 
Operational Property 
Manager 

Recommendation 2. The overdue 

actions from the November 2020 

Workplace Health and Safety 

Inspection Checklist for South 

Holland Centre be completed. All 

future deadlines to be complied 

with.  

Medium Outstanding 31/08/2021 30 
November 
2021 

The urgent work has taken place in regards to 
the emergency lighting. The new step lighting in 
the Cinema is due to be installed in November. 
The significant leaks and water ingress has been 
repaired and most storage issues have now 
been addressed. A final walk around at the end 
of the month with the new manager will highlight 
any minor issues still to be addressed  

SH2108 Asset 
Management 

Strategic and 
Operational Manager 

Recommendation 3. A planned 

maintenance programme be 

developed and complied with, for 

the Council’s operational assets 

and this be subject to regular 

review. 

Medium  Outstanding 31/08/2021 30th March 
2022 

The plan cannot be adopted until the buildings 
are back in a compliant condition. Most major 
areas have now been addressed with significant 
sums being spent on the assets. Once the next 
round of capital bids are signed off we will be in 
a position to undertake full surveys and at least 
be able to put a strategy in place that we can 
work to on an annual basis 

 

P
age 68



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of:      Deputy Chief Executive – Corporate Development (S151), Christine Marshall 
 
To: Governance and Audit Committee – 11th November 2021 
 
Author: Jacqueline Mundy – Interim Treasury and Investment Manager (Public 

Sector Partnership Services Ltd (PSPSL)) 
 
Subject:  Mid Term Treasury Report 2021/22  
 
Purpose: To provide an update of the treasury management position of the Council 

as at 30th September 2021. 
 

 
Recommendations:  
 

1 That Governance and Audit Committee note this report, the treasury activity as detailed in 
Appendix A and the economic update from Link Asset Services at Appendix B and make 
any comments for consideration by Council at their meeting on 24th November 2021.  

 

 
1.0  BACKGROUND 

 
1.1 In December 2017, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, (CIPFA), 

issued revised Prudential and Treasury Management Codes. As from 2021/22, all local 
authorities are required to prepare a Capital Strategy which is to provide the following: -  
 

• a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury 
management activity contribute to the provision of services  

• an overview of how the associated risk is managed  
• the implications for future financial sustainability  

 
A report setting out our Capital Strategy was taken to the full council as part of the budget 
setting report on 3rd March 2021.  
 

1.2 Treasury management is defined as: “The management of the local authority’s borrowing, 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions; 
the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of 
optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 

 
  The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised during the 

year will meet its cash expenditure.  Part of the treasury management operations ensure 
this cash flow is adequately planned, with surplus monies being invested in low-risk 
counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering maximising 
investment return. 

 
  The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 

Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the 
Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure the Council can meet its 
capital spending obligations.  This management of longer term cash may involve 
arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses, and on 
occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost 
objectives. 

 
1.3  The Treasury Management function is administered by Public Sector Partnership Services 

Ltd on behalf of the Council. 

Page 69

Agenda Item 7.



   
 
 
1.4  This report has been written in accordance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of 

Practice on Treasury Management (revised 2017).  The primary requirements are as 
follows: 
 
• Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which sets 

out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management activities; 
• Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the 

manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives; 
• Receipt by full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement - 

including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy - 
for the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report (this report) and an Annual Report 
(stewardship report) covering activities during the previous year; 

• Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring 
treasury management policies and practices and for the execution and 
administration of treasury management decisions; and  

• Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management strategy 
and policies to a specific named body.  For this Council the delegated body is the 
Governance and Audit Committee. 

 
1.5 Attached for scrutiny at Appendix A is the 2021/22 Treasury Management Strategy 

Statement and Annual Investment Strategy update and at Appendix B an economic 
update from Link Asset Services to enable Governance and Audit to make any comments 
for consideration by Council at their meeting on 24th November 2021. 
 
The mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management, and covers the following: 
 
• An economic update for the 2021/22 financial year to 30th September 2021; 
• A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 

Strategy; 
• The Council’s capital expenditure as set out in the capital strategy and prudential 

indicators; 
• A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2021/22; 
• A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2021/22; 
• A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2021/22; 
• A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2021/22. 
 

2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 As the report is mainly an update report there are no alternative options presented. 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1  To comply with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017. 

 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 The report provides Members with a summary of the economy, the effect it has had on 

financial markets and the treasury activity during 2021/22. The report requires scrutiny 
prior to submitting to Council for approval. 

Page 70



   
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.1.1 This Council is required to produce a mid-term treasury report to comply with the CIPFA 

Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017. The report has no implications which 
would affect the constitution and does not therefore warrant a further change in the 
constitution. 

 
5.1.2 Plans and strategies for control of the Council’s borrowing, investments, capital 

expenditure and minimum revenue provision form part of the Council’s policy framework 
and are therefore a non-executive (Council) function under the Council’s Constitution. 

 
5.2 Financial 
 
5.2.1 This mid-term report provides a review of the treasury activity for the first six month of the 

2021/22 financial year. 
 
5.2.2 The Council held £48m of investments and £3.71m of loans to Welland Homes as at 30 

September 2021. The investment portfolio yield for the first six months of the year is 
0.352% against a benchmark of -0.054% (average 3 month LIBID). 

 
5.2.3 The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2021/22 is £194,100 (GF £181,600, HRA 

£12,500) and performance for the year to date is £94,092 which is £2,958 below the 
profiled budget.  The outturn is currently projected to be £185,900 which is £10,200 below 
the estimate. This budget shortfall can be attributed to the current level of exceptionally 
low interest rates available. 

 
5.3   Risk Management 
 
5.3.1   The Council’s priority is the security of its investments. 

 
5.4   Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
5.4.1   The report is being submitted for pre decision scrutiny prior to the minutes of this meeting 

being submitted to Council. 
 
5.4.2   Link Asset Services have been consulted in relation to the compilation of this report.  
  
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 Due to budgetary considerations all wards are affected. 

  
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1   CPI – Consumer Price Index 
7.2   CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
7.3 CFR – Capital Financing Requirement 
7.4 DMADF - Debt Management Account Deposit Facility 
7.5 ECB – European Central Bank 
7.6 GDP – Gross Domestic Product 
7.7 HRA – Housing Revenue Account 
7.8 LIBID – London Inter Bank Bid (Investment Rate) 
7.9 MPC – Monetary Policy Committee 
7.10 MMF – Money Market Funds 

Page 71



   
 
7.11 PSPSL – Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd 
7.12 PWLB – Public Works Loan Board 
7.13 QE – Quantitative Easing 
7.14 TMSS – Treasury Management Strategy Statement 

 
 

Background papers:- 

a) SHDC Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2021/22. 

 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post Jacqueline Mundy – Treasury and Investment Manager (PSPSL) 
Telephone Number: 01507 613248 
Email: Jacqueline.Mundy@pspsl.co.uk 
 
Key Decision: No  
 
Exempt Decision: No  
 
This report refers to a Mandatory Service 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
 
Appendix A - Treasury Management Strategy Statement & Annual Investment Strategy Update 
2021/22. 
 
Appendix B – Economic Update (from Link Asset Services) 

Page 72

file:///G:/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc


APPENDIX A 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy Update 

2021/22 

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2021/22 was approved by 

Council on 3rd March 2021. 

There are no policy changes to the TMSS; the details in this report update the position in the 
light of the updated economic position and budgetary changes already approved.  
  
The Council’s Capital Position (Prudential Indicators) 
 
This part of the report is structured to update: 

• The Council’s capital expenditure plans; 
• How these plans are being financed; 
• The impact of the changes in the capital expenditure plans on the prudential  
   indicators and the underlying need to borrow; and 
• Compliance with the limits in place for borrowing activity. 

 
Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure 
 
The following table shows the revised estimates and financing of capital expenditure and the 
changes since the capital programme was agreed at the Budget. It also highlights the 
original supported and unsupported elements of the capital programme, and the expected 
financing arrangements of this capital expenditure. 
 

 

*Commercial activities/non-financial investments relate to areas such as capital expenditure 

on investment properties, loans to third parties etc. 

 

The borrowing need shown in the above table is the Council’s purchase of an additional 

equity stake in Welland Homes and the loans made to Welland Homes. This capital 

expenditure has not been financed and therefore creates a borrowing requirement. Rather 

Capital Expenditure 2021-22 
Original 

Programme 
£’000 

2021-22 
Latest 

Approved 
£’000 

Actual 
As At 

30-09-21 
£’000 

2021-22 
Forecast 
Outturn 

£’000 

Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) 

11,923 13,337 1,211 9,996 

General Fund 6,851 7,720 1,834 6,366 

Total spend 18,774 21,057 3,045 16,362 

Financed by:     

Capital receipts 744 744 (86) 744 

HRA Capital receipts – Land 
Sales 

0 0 0 0 

Capital grants and 
Contributions 

1,338 1,595 410 1,572 

Major Repairs Reserve 5,794 7,195 1,306 7,195 

Direct Revenue Funding 4,229 4,825 200 2,408 

1-4-1 receipts 1,091 1,092 (8) 486 

Shared Ownership Sale 
Proceeds 

891 1,044 0 605 

Total financing 14,087 16,495 1,821 13,010 

Borrowing need 4,687 4,562 1,224 3,352 

Page 73



APPENDIX A 

than take out external borrowing, the Council is utilising its cash balances and internally 

borrowing to finance the capital expenditure. 

 

Changes to the Prudential Indicators for the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), 
External Debt and the Operational Boundary. 
 
The following table shows the CFR, which is the underlying external need to incur borrowing 

for a capital purpose. It also shows the expected debt position over the period. This is 

termed the Operational Boundary. 

 

Limits to Borrowing Activity 

The first key control over the treasury activity is a prudential indicator to ensure that over the 

medium term, net borrowing (borrowings less investments) will only be for a capital purpose.  

Gross external borrowing should not, except in the short term, exceed the total of CFR in the 

preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2021/22 and next two financial 

years.  This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years.  The Council 

has approved a policy for borrowing in advance of need which will be adhered to if this 

proves prudent. 

 2021-22 
Original 
Estimate 

For Year End 
£’000 

2021-22 
Latest 

Approved 
For Year End 

£’000 

Position 
As At 

30-09-21 
£’000 

2021-22 
Forecast 
 Outturn 

For Year End 
£’000 

Prudential Indicator – CFR 

CFR – housing         68,427   68,427   68,427    68,427 

CFR – non housing  12,512   12,387 11,288     9,160 

Total CFR         80,939   80,814 79,715    77,587 

     

Net movement in CFR          4,687     4,562 1,224       3,352 

Prudential Indicator – External Debt / Operational Boundary 

Borrowing  67,456 67,456  67,456 67,456 

Other long term liabilities 0 0           0 0 

Total debt  31 March 67,456 67,456  67,456 67,456 

Approved Operational 
Boundary 

 
87,000 

 
87,000 

 
87,000 

 
87,000 

 2021-22 
Original 
Estimate 
For Year 

End 
£’000 

2021-22 
Revised 
Estimate 
For Year 

End 
£’000 

Position 
As At 

30/09/21 
£’000 

2021-22 
Forecast 
 Outturn 
For Year 

End 
£’000 

Gross borrowing 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 

Less investments (38,794) (42,987) (48,033) (44,842) 

Net borrowing 28,662 24,468 19,423 22,614 

CFR (year-end position) 80,939 80,814 79,715 77,587 

Page 74



APPENDIX A 

The Deputy Chief Executive – Corporate Development (Section 151 Officer) reports that no 

difficulties are envisaged for the current or future years in complying with this prudential 

indicator.  

A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing.  This is the Authorised 

Limit which represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited and needs to be set 

and revised by Members.  It reflects the level of borrowing which, while not desired, could be 

afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.  It is the expected 

maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected movements. This is the 

statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003. 

 

The limit of £1m for long term liabilities shown above provides headroom for the Council to 

take out finance leases for capital assets rather than outright purchase. Prior to taking out a 

finance lease, a full option appraisal would be carried out to ensure it is the most cost 

effective way of financing the capital expenditure. 

Borrowing 
 
The Council’s projected capital financing requirement (CFR) for the end of 2021/22 is 
£77.59m.  The CFR denotes the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes.  If 
the CFR is positive the Council may borrow from the PWLB or the market (external 
borrowing) or from internal balances on a temporary basis (internal borrowing).  The balance 
of external and internal borrowing is generally driven by market conditions.  The Council has 
borrowings of £67.456m in respect of the Housing Revenue Account self-financing 
settlement and it is anticipated that further borrowing will not be undertaken during this 
financial year but this will be kept under review. 
 
The following graph shows the movement in PWLB rates for the first six months of the year 
to 30th September 2021. 

Authorised limit for external debt 2021-22 
Original 
Estimate 

For Year End 
£’000 

Position 
As 
At 

30/09/21 
£’000 

2021-22 
Revised 
Estimate 

For Year End 
£’000 

Borrowing 90,000 90,000 90,000 

Other long term liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Total 91,000 91,000 91,000 

Page 75



APPENDIX A 

 
 
The 50-year PWLB target rate for new long-term borrowing was back to Quarter 1 levels at 
1.98%, after two months of lower rates over summer.   
 
Debt Rescheduling 
 
Debt rescheduling opportunities have been very limited in the current economic climate and 
following the various increases in the margins added to gilt yields which have impacted 
PWLB new borrowing rates since October 2010. No debt rescheduling has therefore been 
undertaken to date in the current financial year.   
 
Compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits 
 
It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the affordable 
borrowing limits. During the half year ended 30th September 2021, the Council has operated 
within the treasury and prudential indicators set out in the Council’s Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement for 2021.  The Deputy Chief Executive – Corporate Development 
(Section 151 Officer) reports that no difficulties are envisaged for the current or future years 
in complying with these indicators. 
 
Annual Investment Strategy 
 
The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2021/22, which includes the 

Annual Investment Strategy, was approved by the Council on 3rd March 2021.  In 

accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice, it sets out the Council’s 

investment priorities as being: 

 

• Security of capital 

• Liquidity 

• Yield 

Page 76



APPENDIX A 

 

The Council will aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on its investments commensurate 

with proper levels of security and liquidity and with the Council’s risk appetite. In the current 

economic climate, it is considered appropriate to keep investments short term to cover cash 

flow needs, but also to seek out value available in periods up to 12 months with high credit 

rated financial institutions, using the Link suggested creditworthiness approach, including a 

minimum sovereign credit rating and Credit Default Swap overlay information.  

 

As shown by the interest rate forecasts in Appendix B, it is now impossible to earn the level 

of interest rates commonly seen in previous decades as all investment rates are barely 

above zero now that Bank Rate is at 0.10%.  There is however increasing likelihood that the 

Bank Rate will begin to rise during the second half of the financial year. Although this would 

improve investment returns available to the council, Link Asset Services forecast the Bank 

Rate to rise slowly to 0.75% by March 2024.  

 

Investment Portfolio 2021/22 
 
The Council held £48.034m of investments and £3.710m of loans to Welland Homes as at 
30 September 2021. The investment portfolio yield for the first six months of the year is 
0.3519% against a benchmark of -0.054% (average 3 month LIBID). Deposits held excluding 
accrued interest were as follows: 
   

Page 77



APPENDIX A 

 
 
0 

 

Institution Investment 
Type 

Start 
Date 

Maturity 
Date 

Rate/ 
Return 

% 

As at 
31-03-21 

£’000 

As at 
30-09-21 

£’000 

Welland Homes  Long Term Debtor n/a n/a n/a 3,710 3,710 

Lloyds Bank Current Account Instant Access n/a n/a 0.00 0 1,395 

Handelsbanken  Instant Access n/a n/a 0.00 4,993 4,993 

CCLA Money Market Fund  Instant Access n/a n/a 0.024 3,500   4,650 

Lloyds Bank  95 Day Notice n/a n/a 0.05 4,994 4,995 

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council Time Deposit 13/05/20 12/05/21 1.00 3,000 0 

Standard Chartered  Time Deposit 02/12/20 02/06/21 0.04 3,000 0 

Nationwide Building Society Time Deposit 02/12/20 02/06/21 0.06 2,000 0 

Goldman Sachs Investment Bank Time Deposit 13/01/21 13/07/21 0.11 5,000 0 

Australia & New Zealand Bank Time Deposit 08/02/21 07/02/22 0.11 2,500       2,500  

Australia & New Zealand Bank Time Deposit 15/02/21 16/08/21 0.10 2,500 0 

Thurrock Borough Council Time Deposit 12/03/21 11/03/22 0.30 2,000       2,000  

Standard Chartered  Time Deposit 16/03/21 16/09/21 0.11 2,000         0  

National Westminster Bank (CD) Certificate of Deposit 17/03/21 17/03/22 0.16 5,000       5,000  

Close Brothers Time Deposit 26/03/21 24/09/21 0.25 2,500 0  

Bayerische Landesbank London Time Deposit 07/04/21 07/10/21 0.10 0 3,000        

Nationwide Building Society Time Deposit 18/05/21 18/11/21 0.07 0       2,000  

Close Brothers Time Deposit 24/05/21 24/11/21 0.25 0       2,500  

Standard Chartered  Time Deposit 02/06/21 02/12/21 0.12 0       3,000 

Goldman Sachs Investment Bank Time Deposit 13/07/21 31/12/21 0.17 0        5,000  

Australia & New Zealand Bank Time Deposit 16/08/21 15/08/22 0.18 0 2,500  

Standard Chartered Time Deposit 16/09/21 16/03/22 0.08 0       2,000  

Close Brothers Time Deposit 24/09/21 24/03/22 0.25 0       2,500 

TOTAL       46,697 51,743 

P
age 78



APPENDIX A 

In addition to the investments listed, the Council has issued four loans to Welland Homes 
totalling £3.710m at a rate of 3.5% which are classified as Long Term Debtors.  
 
The Deputy Chief Executive – Corporate Development (Section 151 Officer) confirms that 
the approved limits within the Annual Investment Strategy were not breached during the first 
six months of 2021/22. 
 
The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2021/22 is £194,100 (GF £181,600, HRA 
£12,500) and performance for the year to date is £94,092 which is £2,958 below the profiled 
budget.  The outturn is currently projected to be £183,900 which is £10,200 below the 
estimate. This budget shortfall can be attributed to the current level of exceptionally low 
interest rates available. 
 
The Council monitors risk of its investment portfolio against the Link Asset Services 
counterparty risk matrix.  This matrix gives recommended maximum investment durations for 
each financial institution based on the ratings allocated by the major credit rating agencies 
and also takes into account credit default swap prices. 
 
 
OTHER  
 
Changes in risk policy 
 
The 2018 CIPFA Codes and guidance notes have placed enhanced importance on risk 
management.  Where an authority changes its risk policy e.g. for moving surplus cash into or 
out of certain types of investment funds or other types of investment instruments, this 
change in risk policy should be brought to members’ attention in treasury management 
update reports. 
 
There has been no change in risk policy to report, however a CIPFA consultation is 
underway and changes to the Prudential Code could follow from April 2022. 
 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



  APPENDIX B 
 
Economics and Interest Rates (from Link Asset Services as at 06/10/21) 
 
ECONOMICS UPDATE 
 

MPC meeting 24.9.21 

The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) voted unanimously to leave Bank Rate unchanged at 
0.10% and made no changes to its programme of quantitative easing purchases due to finish 
by the end of this year at a total of £895bn; two MPC members voted to stop the last £35bn of 
purchases as they were concerned that this would add to inflationary pressures. 

There was a major shift in the tone of the MPC’s minutes at this meeting from the previous 
meeting in August which had majored on indicating that some tightening in monetary policy 
was now on the horizon, but also not wanting to stifle economic recovery by too early an 
increase in Bank Rate. In his press conference after the August MPC meeting, Governor 
Andrew Bailey said, “the challenge of avoiding a steep rise in unemployment has been 
replaced by that of ensuring a flow of labour into jobs” and that “the Committee will be 
monitoring closely the incoming evidence regarding developments in the labour market, and 
particularly unemployment, wider measures of slack, and underlying wage pressures.” In other 
words, it was flagging up a potential danger that labour shortages could push up wage growth 
by more than it expects and that, as a result, CPI inflation would stay above the 2% target for 
longer. It also discounted sharp increases in monthly inflation figures in the pipeline in late 
2021 which were largely propelled by events a year ago e.g., the cut in VAT in August 2020 for 
the hospitality industry, and by temporary shortages which would eventually work their way out 
of the system: in other words, the MPC had been prepared to look through a temporary 
spike in inflation. 

So, in August the country was just put on alert.  However, this time the MPC’s words indicated 
there had been a marked increase in concern that more recent increases in prices, particularly 
the increases in gas and electricity prices in October and due again next April, are, indeed, 
likely to lead to faster and higher inflation expectations and underlying wage growth, 
which would in turn increase the risk that price pressures would prove more persistent 
next year than previously expected. Indeed, to emphasise its concern about inflationary 
pressures, the MPC pointedly chose to reaffirm its commitment to the 2% inflation target 
in its statement; this suggested that it was now willing to look through the flagging economic 
recovery during the summer to prioritise bringing inflation down next year. This is a reversal of 
its priorities in August and a long way from words at earlier MPC meetings which indicated a 
willingness to look through inflation overshooting the target for limited periods to ensure that 
inflation was ‘sustainably over 2%’. Indeed, whereas in August the MPC’s focus was on getting 
through a winter of temporarily high energy prices and supply shortages, believing that inflation 
would return to just under the 2% target after reaching a high around 4% in late 2021, now its 
primary concern is that underlying price pressures in the economy are likely to get embedded 
over the next year and elevate future inflation to stay significantly above its 2% target and for 
longer. 

Financial markets are now pricing in a first increase in Bank Rate from 0.10% to 0.25% in 
February 2022, but this looks ambitious as the MPC has stated that it wants to see what 
happens to the economy, and particularly to employment once furlough ends at the end of 
September. At the MPC’s meeting in February it will only have available the employment 
figures for November: to get a clearer picture of employment trends, it would need to wait until 
the May meeting when it would have data up until February. At its May meeting, it will also 
have a clearer understanding of the likely peak of inflation. 

 

The MPC’s forward guidance on its intended monetary policy on raising Bank Rate versus 
selling (quantitative easing) holdings of bonds is as follows: - 

Page 81



  APPENDIX B   
 

1. Placing the focus on raising Bank Rate as “the active instrument in most 
circumstances”. 

2. Raising Bank Rate to 0.50% before starting on reducing its holdings. 

3. Once Bank Rate is at 0.50% it would stop reinvesting maturing gilts. 

4. Once Bank Rate had risen to at least 1%, it would start selling its holdings. 

 

COVID-19 vaccines. These have been the game changer which have enormously boosted 
confidence that life in the UK could largely return to normal during the summer after a 
third wave of the virus threatened to overwhelm hospitals in the spring. With the household 
saving rate having been exceptionally high since the first lockdown in March 2020, there is 
plenty of pent-up demand and purchasing power stored up for services in hard hit sectors like 
restaurants, travel and hotels. The big question is whether mutations of the virus could develop 
which render current vaccines ineffective, as opposed to how quickly vaccines can be modified 
to deal with them and enhanced testing programmes be implemented to contain their spread. 

 

US.  See comments below on US treasury yields. 
 

EU. The slow role out of vaccines initially delayed economic recovery in early 2021 but the 
vaccination rate has picked up sharply since then.  After a contraction in GDP of -0.3% in Q1, 
Q2 came in with strong growth of 2%, which is likely to continue into Q3, though some 
countries more dependent on tourism may struggle. Recent sharp increases in gas and 
electricity prices have increased overall inflationary pressures but the ECB is likely to see these 
as being only transitory after an initial burst through to around 4%, so is unlikely to be raising 
rates for a considerable time.   
German general election. With the CDU/CSU and SDP both having won around 24-26% of the 
vote in the September general election, the composition of Germany’s next coalition 
government may not be agreed by the end of 2021. An SDP-led coalition would probably 
pursue a slightly less restrictive fiscal policy, but any change of direction from a CDU/CSU led 
coalition government is likely to be small. However, with Angela Merkel standing down as 
Chancellor as soon as a coalition is formed, there will be a hole in overall EU leadership which 
will be difficult to fill. 

 
China.  After a concerted effort to get on top of the virus outbreak in Q1 2020, economic 
recovery was strong in the rest of the year; this enabled China to recover all the initial 
contraction. During 2020, policy makers both quashed the virus and implemented a programme 
of monetary and fiscal support that was particularly effective at stimulating short-term growth. 
At the same time, China’s economy benefited from the shift towards online spending by 
consumers in developed markets. These factors helped to explain its comparative 
outperformance compared to western economies during 2020 and earlier in 2021. However, 
the pace of economic growth has now fallen back after this initial surge of recovery from the 
pandemic and China is now struggling to contain the spread of the Delta variant through sharp 
local lockdowns - which will also depress economic growth. There are also questions as to how 
effective Chinese vaccines are proving. In addition, recent regulatory actions motivated by a 
political agenda to channel activities into officially approved directions, are also likely to reduce 
the dynamism and long-term growth of the Chinese economy. 

 
Japan. 2021 has been a patchy year in combating Covid.  However, after a slow start, nearly 
50% of the population are now vaccinated and Covid case numbers are falling. After a weak 
Q3 there is likely to be a strong recovery in Q4.  The Bank of Japan is continuing its very loose 
monetary policy but with little prospect of getting inflation back above 1% towards its target of 
2%, any time soon: indeed, inflation was negative in July. New Prime Minister Kishida has 
promised a large fiscal stimulus package after the November general election – which his party 
is likely to win. 

Page 82



  APPENDIX B   
 

 
World growth.  World growth was in recession in 2020 but recovered during 2021 until starting 
to lose momentum more recently. Inflation has been rising due to increases in gas and 
electricity prices, shipping costs and supply shortages, although these should subside during 
2022. It is likely that we are heading into a period where there will be a reversal of world 
globalisation and a decoupling of western countries from dependence on China to supply 
products, and vice versa. This is likely to reduce world growth rates from those in prior 
decades. 

 

INTEREST RATE FORECASTS 
 
The Council’s treasury advisor, Link Asset Services, has provided the following forecast as at 
07/10/20.  
 
The PWLB rates quoted are the concessionary certainty rates. 

 

  
Dec- 
21 

Mar-
22 

Jun- 
22 

Sep- 
22 

Dec- 
22 

Mar-
23 

Jun- 
23 

Sep- 
23 

Dec -
23 

Mar-
24 

Bank Rate 0.10% 0.10% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 

3 Month 
Average 
Earnings 

0.10% 0.10% 0.20% 0.20% 0.30% 0.40% 0.50% 0.50% 0.60% 0.70% 

6 Month 
Average 
Earnings 

0.20% 0.20% 0.30% 030% 0.40% 0.50% 0.60% 0.60% 0.70% 0.80% 

12 Month 
Average 
Earnings 

0.30% 0.40% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.60% 0.70% 0.80% 0.90% 1.00% 

5yr 
PWLB* 

rate 
1.40% 1.40% 1.50% 1.50% 1.60% 1.60% 1.60% 1.70% 1.70% 1.70% 

10yr 
PWLB* 

rate 
1.80% 1.80% 1.90% 1.90% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.10% 2.10% 2.10% 

25yr 
PWLB* 

rate 
2.20% 2.20% 2.30% 2.30% 2.40% 2.40% 2.40% 2.50% 2.50% 2.60% 

50yr 
PWLB* 

rate 
2.00% 2.00% 2.10% 2.20% 2.20% 2.20% 2.20% 2.30% 2.30% 2.40% 

 
* PWLB – Public Works Loan Board 
 
The coronavirus outbreak has done huge economic damage to the UK and to economies around 
the world. After the Bank of England took emergency action in March 2020 to cut Bank Rate to 
0.10%, it left Bank Rate unchanged at its subsequent meetings. 
 
As shown in the forecast table above, one increase in Bank Rate from 0.10% to 0.25% has now 
been included in quarter 2 of 2022/23, a second increase to 0.50% in quarter 2 of 23/24 and a third 
one to 0.75% in quarter 4 of 23/24.  
 

Page 83



  APPENDIX B   
 
Significant risks to the forecasts 

• COVID vaccines do not work to combat new mutations and/or new vaccines take longer 

than anticipated to be developed for successful implementation. 

• The pandemic causes major long-term scarring of the economy. 

• The Government implements an austerity programme that supresses GDP growth. 

• The MPC tightens monetary policy too early – by raising Bank Rate or unwinding QE. 

• The MPC tightens monetary policy too late to ward off building inflationary pressures. 

• Major stock markets e.g. in the US, become increasingly judged as being over-valued and 

susceptible to major price corrections. Central banks become increasingly exposed to the 

“moral hazard” risks of having to buy shares and corporate bonds to reduce the impact of 

major financial market sell-offs on the general economy. 

• Geo-political risks are widespread e.g. German general election in September 2021 

produces an unstable coalition or minority government and a void in high-profile leadership 

in the EU when Angela Merkel steps down as Chancellor of Germany; on-going global 

power influence struggles between Russia/China/US. 

 
The balance of risks to the UK economy: - 

• The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is now to the downside, including 
residual risks from Covid and its variants - both domestically and their potential effects 
worldwide. 

 
Forecasts for Bank Rate 
Bank Rate is not expected to go up fast after the initial rate rise as the supply potential of the 
economy has not generally taken a major hit during the pandemic, so should be able to cope well 
with meeting demand without causing inflation to remain elevated in the medium-term, or to inhibit 
inflation from falling back towards the MPC’s 2% target after the surge to around 4% towards the 
end of 2021. Three increases in Bank rate are forecast in the period to March 2024, ending at 
0.75%. However, these forecasts may well need changing within a relatively short time frame for 
the following reasons: - 
 

• There are increasing grounds for viewing the economic recovery as running out of steam 

during the summer and now into the autumn. This could lead into stagflation which would 

create a dilemma for the MPC as to which way to face. 

• Will some current key supply shortages e.g., petrol and diesel, spill over into causing 

economic activity in some sectors to take a significant hit? 

• Rising gas and electricity prices in October and next April and increases in other prices 

caused by supply shortages and increases in taxation next April, are already going to 

deflate consumer spending power without the MPC having to take any action on Bank Rate 

to cool inflation. Then we have the Government’s upcoming budget in October, which could 

also end up in reducing consumer spending power. 

• On the other hand, consumers are sitting on around £200bn of excess savings left over 

from the pandemic so when will they spend this sum, in part or in total? 

• There are 1.6 million people coming off furlough at the end of September; how many of 

those will not have jobs on 1st October and will, therefore, be available to fill labour 

shortages in many sectors of the economy? So, supply shortages which have been driving 

up both wages and costs, could reduce significantly within the next six months or so and 

alleviate the MPC’s current concerns. 

• There is a risk that there could be further nasty surprises on the Covid front, on top of the 

flu season this winter, which could depress economic activity. 

 

Page 84



  APPENDIX B   
 
In summary, with the high level of uncertainty prevailing on several different fronts, it is likely that 
these forecasts will need to be revised again soon - in line with what the new news is. 
 
It also needs to be borne in mind that Bank Rate being cut to 0.10% was an emergency measure 
to deal with the Covid crisis hitting the UK in March 2020. At any time, the MPC could decide to 
simply take away that final emergency cut from 0.25% to 0.10% on the grounds of it no longer 
being warranted and as a step forward in the return to normalisation. In addition, any Bank Rate 
under 1% is both highly unusual and highly supportive of economic growth.  
 
Forecasts for PWLB rates and gilt and treasury yields 
As the interest forecast table for PWLB certainty rates above shows, there is likely to be a steady 
rise over the forecast period, with some degree of uplift due to rising treasury yields in the US.    
There is likely to be exceptional volatility and unpredictability in respect of gilt yields and 
PWLB rates due to the following factors: - 

• How strongly will changes in gilt yields be correlated to changes in US treasury yields? 

• Will the Fed take action to counter increasing treasury yields if they rise beyond a yet 
unspecified level? 

• Would the MPC act to counter increasing gilt yields if they rise beyond a yet unspecified 
level? 

• How strong will inflationary pressures turn out to be in both the US and the UK and so 
impact treasury and gilt yields? 

• How will central banks implement their new average or sustainable level inflation monetary 
policies? 

• How well will central banks manage the withdrawal of QE purchases of their national bonds 
i.e., without causing a panic reaction in financial markets as happened in the “taper 
tantrums” in the US in 2013? 

• Will exceptional volatility be focused on the short or long-end of the yield curve, or both? 
 
The forecasts are also predicated on an assumption that there is no break-up of the Eurozone or 
EU within our forecasting period, despite the major challenges that are looming up, and that there 
are no major ructions in international relations, especially between the US and China / North Korea 
and Iran, which have a major impact on international trade and world GDP growth.  
 
Gilt and treasury yields 
Since the start of 2021, there has been a lot of volatility in gilt yields, and hence PWLB rates. 
During the first part of the year, US President Biden’s, and the Democratic party’s determination to 
push through a $1.9trn (equivalent to 8.8% of GDP) fiscal boost for the US economy as a recovery 
package from the Covid pandemic was what unsettled financial markets. However, this was in 
addition to the $900bn support package already passed in December 2020 under President 
Trump. This was then followed by additional Democratic ambition to spend further huge sums on 
infrastructure and an American families plan over the next decade which are caught up in 
Democrat / Republican haggling.  Financial markets were alarmed that all this stimulus, which is 
much bigger than in other western economies, was happening at a time in the US when: -  

1. A fast vaccination programme has enabled a rapid opening up of the economy. 
2. The economy had already been growing strongly during 2021. 
3. It started from a position of little spare capacity due to less severe lockdown measures than 

in many other countries. A combination of shortage of labour and supply bottle necks is 
likely to stoke inflationary pressures more in the US than in other countries. 

4. And the Fed was still providing monetary stimulus through monthly QE purchases. 
 

These factors could cause an excess of demand in the economy which could then unleash 
stronger and more sustained inflationary pressures in the US than in other western countries. This 
could then force the Fed to take much earlier action to start tapering monthly QE purchases and/or 
increasing the Fed rate from near zero, despite their stated policy being to target average inflation. 
It is notable that some Fed members have moved forward their expectation of when the first 

Page 85



  APPENDIX B   
 
increases in the Fed rate will occur in recent Fed meetings. In addition, more recently, shortages of 
workers appear to be stoking underlying wage inflationary pressures which are likely to feed 
through into CPI inflation. A run of strong monthly jobs growth figures could be enough to meet the 
threshold set by the Fed of “substantial further progress towards the goal of reaching full 
employment”.  However, the weak growth in August, (announced 3.9.21), has spiked anticipation 
that tapering of monthly QE purchases could start by the end of 2021. These purchases are 
currently acting as downward pressure on treasury yields.  As the US financial markets are, by far, 
the biggest financial markets in the world, any trend upwards in the US will invariably impact and 
influence financial markets in other countries. However, during June and July, longer term yields 
fell sharply; even the large non-farm payroll increase in the first week of August seemed to cause 
the markets little concern, which is somewhat puzzling, particularly in the context of the concerns 
of many commentators that inflation may not be as transitory as the Fed is expecting it to be. 
Indeed, inflation pressures and erosion of surplus economic capacity look much stronger in the US 
than in the UK. As an average since 2011, there has been a 75% correlation between 
movements in 10 year treasury yields and 10 year gilt yields.  This is a significant UPWARD 
RISK exposure to our forecasts for longer term PWLB rates. However, gilt yields and 
treasury yields do not always move in unison. 
 
There are also possible DOWNSIDE RISKS from the huge sums of cash that the UK populace 
have saved during the pandemic; when savings accounts earn little interest, it is likely that some of 
this cash mountain could end up being invested in bonds and so push up demand for bonds and 
support their prices i.e., this would help to keep their yields down. How this will interplay with the 
Bank of England eventually getting round to not reinvesting maturing gilts and then later selling 
gilts, will be interesting to keep an eye on. 
 
The balance of risks to medium to long term PWLB rates: - 

• There is a balance of upside risks to forecasts for medium to long term PWLB rates. 
 
A new era – a fundamental shift in central bank monetary policy 
One of the key results of the pandemic has been a fundamental rethinking and shift in monetary 
policy by major central banks like the Fed, the Bank of England and the ECB, to tolerate a higher 
level of inflation than in the previous two decades when inflation was the prime target to bear down 
on so as to stop it going above a target rate. There is now also a greater emphasis on other targets 
for monetary policy than just inflation, especially on ‘achieving broad and inclusive “maximum” 
employment in its entirety’ in the US before consideration would be given to increasing rates.  
 

• The Fed in America has gone furthest in adopting a monetary policy based on a clear goal 
of allowing the inflation target to be symmetrical, (rather than a ceiling to keep under), so 
that inflation averages out the dips down and surges above the target rate, over an 
unspecified period of time.  

• The Bank of England has also amended its target for monetary policy so that inflation 
should be ‘sustainably over 2%’ and the ECB now has a similar policy.  

• For local authorities, this means that investment interest rates and very short term 
PWLB rates will not be rising as quickly or as high as in previous decades when the 
economy recovers from a downturn and the recovery eventually runs out of spare 
capacity to fuel continuing expansion.   

• Labour market liberalisation since the 1970s has helped to break the wage-price spirals 
that fuelled high levels of inflation and has now set inflation on a lower path which makes 
this shift in monetary policy practicable. In addition, recent changes in flexible employment 
practices, the rise of the gig economy and technological changes, will all help to lower 
inflationary pressures.   

• Governments will also be concerned to see interest rates stay lower as every rise in central 
rates will add to the cost of vastly expanded levels of national debt; (in the UK this is £21bn 
for each 1% rise in rates). On the other hand, higher levels of inflation will help to erode the 
real value of total public debt. 

Page 86



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Assistant Director Governance and Monitoring Officer – Mark Stinson  

 

To: Governance and Audit Committee – Thursday 11 November 4pm 

(Author: Andrea Tait, Democratic Services Officer) 

 

Subject Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme 

 

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee 

 

Recommendation: 
 
That the Committee gives consideration to the content of this report and identifies any issues for 
discussion. 
 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from 

Internal Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer.  
 

1.2 Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, 
half-yearly or quarterly. 

 
1.3 In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with 

some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings. 
 
1.4 Attached at Appendix A to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and 

Audit Committee.  It lays out the meeting dates for the 2021/22 municipal year. Alongside 
each of these meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a regular basis 
together with the author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory, and the 
frequency with which it is considered. 
 

1.5 It has been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the 

 Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the 

 Committee in a clear, structured and organised way. 

1.6 The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad 

 hoc issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be 

 covered at a future meeting, and any one-off issues.  

2.0 OPTIONS 

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme.  
 

2.2 To do nothing. 
 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 To allow Committee members to feed into the Work Programme on a regular basis, to 
ensure that it stays relevant and up to date. 

 

Page 87

Agenda Item 8.



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

4.1 The Work Programme is a formal document laying out the work of the Committee in a 
clear, structured and organised way, thus providing members with up to date and 
relevant information. 

 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS 

5.1  Constitution & Legal 
 

5.1.1 Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the 

author, there are none arising out of this report.   However, the Work Programme should 

assist in providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee 

in line with the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution. 

5.2  Risk Management  
 

5.2.1 Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 

 there are none.  However, one of the roles of the Governance and Audit Committee is to 

 monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate 

 governance in the Council, and the Work Programme should assist in keeping track of 

 risk issues. 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

6.1 No wards or communities will be affected by this post. 
 

7.0 ACRONYMS  

7.1 None. 
 

Background papers:- None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Andrea Tait, Democratic Services Officer 

Telephone Number  

Email: atait@sholland.gov.uk 

 

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report:  

Appendix A Work Programme for the Governance and Audit Committee 

Page 88



 
APPENDIX A 

 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 2021/22 

 
 

Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

11 November 2021 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2021-22 

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

To each 
meeting. 
 
 

 Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations 

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

To each 
meeting. 
 

 Mid Term Treasury Report 21/22 Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy reporting 
requirements 

Half-yearly 

 Q2 2021-22 Risk Report Corey Gooch Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

To each 
meeting 

13 January 2022 Housing Benefit Grant Claims 20/21 External Audit 
(KPMG) 

External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval 

Annual 

 Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Mnimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 2022/23  

Section 151 Officer Mandatory requirement. 
To review Treasury Managmenet 
Strategy and approve Prudential 
Indicators. 
 

Annual 

 Q3 2021-22 Risk Report Corey Gooch Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 
 

To each 
meeting 

 Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment 

Internal Audit For confirmation. 
Good practice. 

Annual 
 
 

17 March 2022 Audit Plan 21/22 External Audit External Audit Plan – Mandatory Annual 

P
age 89



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

 (Ernst & Young) 
 

Approval 
 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2021-22 

Internal Audit  To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting 

 Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan 
2022/23 

Internal Audit 
 

Annual Internal Audit Workplan - 
Mandatory approval 
 

Annual 

 Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment Follow up 
 

Internal Audit For confirmation. 
Good practice. 

 
 

 Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations 

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting 
 

 SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2020/21 
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 
 

Mandatory/Consultation requirement. 
To approve audit fees. 
 

Annual 

 Audit Results Report 20/21 
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 

Mandatory report to those charged 
with Governance 

Annual 
 
 

 Financial Statements 2021/22 
Accounting Policies  
 

Section 151 Officer 
 

Not mandatory, but good practice. Annual 
 

 
The following item to be added to the Committee’s Work Programme on an ad hoc basis, where there is information to report: 
 

• March 2024 – Diarise to review the Counter Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy, and the Whistleblowing Policy (to be reviewed every 
three years, last reviewed March 2021 (Whistleblowing Policy) and 29 July 2021 (Counter Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy). 

P
age 90


	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	4. Strategic Risk Register
	Appendix 1 for Q2 Risk Report

	5. Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity
	Appendix A

	6. Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations
	Appendix A

	7. Mid Term Treasury Report 2021/22
	Appendix A for Mid Term Treasury Report 2021/22
	Appendix B for Mid Term Treasury Report 2021/22

	8. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme
	Appendix A


